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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to the company. The directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.

ERBEXZMERLTR (B AR ([RIER]) 2Be

AIRBRzEM DABEERMERIA LT ZAR0FAREREARZARR# LT ZTE FEREZAL
ETHREERZSEARAZEERAR YERSBEERAF 2 EREAFTFHRERE -AXRz2BSAREEMEE
RTAIERBEEEXRHMERREE -

HRAERETARFEZHMERR CRAEREECRSTHEBRNREIREECESAZIBRAZT SRS A
BERELIREBTAXREECRSEEARBEZTS -

BEERGREEMARARINBRAHARE 2 ARR T E  HEERERTEE R T EREMNBH LA
KRR PREARNRE 2L EMEBDATMELXAGEZEAR TSI B ERMBRAZETAEE

ABRETDRBAFER ETRVEREBEARBZER SESFHERAREZATKRARERNAELFET - TE

EEEL—VAEEHRER BREMANMERS TREMBIEMNEEATEYBLERTE AERSE
SR MARENBEEREMEE  UBAREMSFERRARNREFMRE

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John

Mr. Tam Wing Kin

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Tam Wing Kin

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John

Mr. Tam Wing Kin

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John

Mr. Tam Wing Kin

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

FINANCE COMMITTEE
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Tam Wing Kin

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

ot
L2

$
RTE
"L

el Rl

[
o T

BYFHTES
FHKBL
LN
ISR SEE

EREIFE
BIREELE

REME
PREE S 22 +

BEREES
FHXEL
ma
RIS

FMESES
BIBERAEAE
FHXBEL
A—EAA{L?E/_:E
it it

REZES
BIBERAEAE
FHXBEL
A—EAA{L?E/_:E
id 3 it

MKBEES
BIBERAEAE
FHIXKBEL
%AA{L%EE
it i

HRERE (R

92
J

CORPORATE INFORMATION

o\ & B

) HRAF ZB—PEEH



4

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, aged 43, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in April 2008 and chairman of
the Company in June 2008. He took up the role of Chief Executive
Officer since Mr. Chung Man Wai resigned as Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer on 30 June 2014. Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
has over 10 years’ experience in corporate finance transactions
and investments, and managerial position involving listed and non-
listed companies in Hong Kong. He obtained a Master's Degree
in Business Administration (Finance) from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 1995 and Bachelor of Electronic Engineering in
Computer (Hons) from the City University of Hong Kong in 1993.
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph is the son of Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George,
Executive Director.

Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George, aged 71, was appointed as an
Executive Director on 30 June 2014. He obtained a higher
certificate in Mechanical Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic
and a diploma in Plastic Technology from Stddeutsche Kunstsoff-
Zentrum, West Germany. He had worked in multinational chemical
company for 30 years in sales, marketing and management
positions. Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George is the father of Mr. Lau Chi
Yuen, Joseph, Executive Director and Chairman.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

HITES

JEELRLE B R-TT/\FHALZRETS
RRABZHATES IR T /\FRALE
ERARAREFE -RAEXREAER T —N
FRA=ZTHBERTESRITREREEE
TREH B BB ELEHNEERER
SHREETARRE T FER  EREEZ LT
KIEEMRBIEEEERR - WoBR— AR
FR-NAN=ZFEBFEPXABRBEETA
EREEEEE (R BELEMNEREFT
B(RB)BTEM - BERATERNTESS
EREEZ T

BIEREE 71 RN —WFA=TH
BEAARTES FESEEEIRBHEM
TRRESHKFE kaESiddeutsche Kunstsoff-
Zentrum¥B BRI SUR - 5 B R EBBILE R A R]
TEE=+F EIHE THEHEEREER
M- BIEBHEERBRITESREIRIATREE
2R



p—

/

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John, aged 55, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008.
He obtained Ph.D. Degree in Computer Science from the University
of Minnesota, USA in 1989. In the same year, he was appointed
as an Associate, Research Staff in the Institute of Systems Science
at National University of Singapore. In 1999, he was awarded
a Teaching Excellence Appreciation Award by the Dean of the
School of Engineering of The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and was elevated as a Senior Member of the Institute
of Electrical and Electronics Engineers. He is now the chairman and
chief executive officer of Asia Vision Technology Ltd. He is currently
an Independent Non-executive Director of Ruifeng Petroleum
Chemical Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tam Wing Kin, aged 49, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008. He is
an Independent Non-executive Director of Fittec International
Group Limited. He is also a member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a Certified Public Accountant (Practising).
Previously, he had worked in one of the leading international
accountancy firms and several listed companies in Hong Kong. He
has over 20 years of experience in accounting field.

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex, aged 52, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008.
He obtained a BSc (Hons) degree in Electrical Engineering from
University of Bath (UK) in 1986 and subsequently a MBA degree
from Heriot Watt University (UK). He has over 15 years working
experience in financial market and corporate finance activities in
both Hong Kong and China.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Kai Sing, Billy, aged 47, is the Chief Operating Officer
of a major subsidiary of the Company. He joined the Group in
October 2009. Mr. Chan has over 10 years of working experiences
in communication industry, and has held senior positions in
communication and IT enterprises. He was the Chief Consultant
of Internet Products and the Chief Consultant of Business Sales of
New World Telecommunications Limited, and the Sale department
head of PCCW Limited. Before his joining, he was the General
Manager of New World iMedia Solutions Limited.

Ms. Ng Ka Sim, aged 42, is the Group Financial Controller of
the Company. She joined the Group in November 2011. She has
extensive experience in auditing and financial management. She
had worked in multinational accounting firms and has over 10
years’ experience in auditing. She is a member of CPA Australia
and a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She obtained a Bachelor of
Accounting in Australia.

Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan, aged 29, is the Company Secretary and
assistant finance manager of the Company. She joined the Group in
May 2008. She is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VOLUNTARILY WINDING UP OF INFO-SOURCE MEDIA
LIMITED

On 11 January 2013, a special resolution was passed by the
shareholders of Info-Source Media Limited (“Info-Source”) to
voluntarily wind up Info-Source. The Group holds 20% equity
interests in Info-Source and is classified as available-for-sale financial
assets. The investment was fully impaired during the year ended 31
December 2010. It is the Directors’ opinion that the winding up of
Info-Source will not have a material impact on the Group's financial
position. The voluntarily winding up process is not yet completed as
at the date of this Report.

FORMATION OF A JOINT VENTURE

On 25 February 2014, Ratio Knitting Factory Limited (“Ratio”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and two independent
third parties entered into a shareholders agreement (the
“Shareholders Agreement”) in relation to the formation and
operation of Ricotex Industrial Company Limited (“Ricotex”)
(formerly known as Upper Mega Limited). Ricotex and its subsidiary
will be principally engaged in trading and manufacturing of
garment products and related accessories and other related
business, including but not limited to establishing and operating
a garment manufacturing plant in the Kingdom of Cambodia
("Cambodia”). Pursuant to the Shareholders Agreement, Ratio
is holding 45% of the issued share capital of Ricotex. Ratio will
contribute HK$18,000,000 in cash by way of capital contribution
in its respective shares and Ratio is committed to contribute a
further HK$10,000,000 towards Ricotex by way of interest-bearing
shareholders’ loan if Ricotex requires further financing. Therefore,
the maximum contribution from Ratio to Ricotex is HK$28,000,000.
Ricotex is accounted for as an associate of the Company. Please
refer to announcement dated 25 February 2014 for details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SHARE CONSOLIDATION AND CAPITAL
REORGANISATION

On 18 March 2014, the Board of Directors proposed to implement
the share consolidation and capital reorganisation.

1. Share consolidation

The Board of Directors proposed to implement the share
consolidation on the basis that every 5 issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.05 each will be consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.25 each (“Share Consolidation”).

Share Consolidation was effected immediately after the
approval of shareholders by an ordinary resolution passed at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 23
April 2014,

2. Capital reorganisation

Immediately after the Share Consolidation as set out in (1)
above becoming effective, the Board of Directors proposes
to implement the capital reorganisation involving (i) a
reduction in the par value of each issued consolidated share
from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01 and (ii) a subdivision of each
authorised but unissued consolidated share into 25 new shares
of HK$0.01 each (“Capital Reorganisation”). The Capital
Reorganisation was approved by a special resolution passed at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 23
April 2014 and with sanction of an Order of the Grand Court
of the Cayman Islands dated 15 August 2014. The Capital
Reorganisation became effective on 20 August 2014.

Please refer to announcements dated 18 March 2014; 23

April 2014, 11 August 2014 and 20 August 2014 and circular
dated 28 March 2014 for details.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

1.

Subscription Agreement

On 28 July 2014, (i) Charmston (Holdings) Limited
("Charmston”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, (i) Synergy Chain Limited (“Synergy”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, which currently holds 51%
of the issued share capital of Charmston; (iii) Datamax Limited
and Capital Master Holdings Limited, which currently holds
49% of the issued share capital of Charmston; and (iv) Hoyden
Ventures Limited (“Hoyden”), an independent third party,
entered into the subscription agreement pursuant to which
Hoyden has conditionally agreed to subscribe for 45% of the
total number of issued share of Charmston as enlarged by the
subscription at the consideration of HK$30,000,000 in cash
("Subscription”). The Subscription was still subject to other
conditions and not yet completed as at the date of this report.

Please refer to announcement dated 31 July 2014 and circular
dated 25 September 2014 for details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B PG W B2 4y b

Disposal of partial issued share capital of Charmston

On 28 July 2014, Synergy entered into the sale and purchase
agreement with Hoyden, pursuant to which Hoyden has
conditionally agreed to acquire and Synergy has conditionally
agreed to sell 273 Charmston shares which represented 15%
of the total number of issued share capital of Charmston
as enlarged by the Subscription, at the consideration of
HK$10,000,000 in cash (“Share Disposal”). Upon completion
of the Subscription and Share Disposal, Synergy will hold
approximately 13% of the issued share capital in Charmston.
Charmston will cease to be a subsidiary of Company and
the financial results and position of the Charmston and its
subsidiaries (“Charmston Group”) will be deconsolidated from
the financial statement of the Company.

The Share Disposal was still subject to other conditions and not
yet completed as at the date of this report.

Please refer to announcement dated 31 July 2014 and circular
dated 25 September 2014 for details.

Charmston Group was engaged in trading and retail of apparel
and related accessories in Hong Kong. The assets and liabilities
attributable to the trading of apparel and related accessories
business, which expected to be sold within twelve months,
have been classified as a disposal group held for sale and are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2014. The disposal group is included in the
Group's apparel and related accessories segment. For the year
ended 30 June 2014, write-down of non-current assets held
for sale of approximately HK$10,142,000 and impairment
of goodwill made for apparel and related accessories cash-
generating unit of approximately HK$28,793,000 had been
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss. Details of the
discontinued operations and non-current assets held for sale
are set out in notes 12 and 37 to the financial statements.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Finance results

For the year ended 30 June 2014 (the “Year”), loss attributable to
owners of the Company (including continuing and discontinued
operations) was approximately HK$104,391,000. Comparing to
loss attributable to owners of the Company (including continuing
and discontinued operations) for the eighteen months ended
30 June 2013 of approximately HK$84,992,000, the increase
in loss attributable to the owners of the Company was mainly
attributable to (i) substantial decreased in the gross profit from
manufacturing and trading of high-end swimwear and related
garment products; (ii) write-down of non-current assets held
for sale of approximately HK$10,142,000 and impairment of
goodwill made for apparel and related accessories cash-generating
unit of approximately HK$28,793,000 arising from disposal of
part of the issued share capital of Charmston Group for the
Year; (i) allowance for impairment of goodwill of approximately
HK$36,392,000 was made for provision of on-line shopping,
advertising and media related services cash-generating unit for the
Year (eighteen months ended 30 June 2013: HK$22,100,000); (iv)
no allowance for impairment of goodwill was made for swimwear
cash-generating unit for the Year (eighteen months ended 30 June
2013: HK$37,200,000); and (v) net allowance for trade and other
receivables decreased by HK$9,133,000 (eighteen months ended
30 June 2013: HK$10,651,000).

Revenue and Gross Profit

For the Year, the Group'’s total turnover (including continuing and
discontinued operations) and gross profit (including continuing and
discontinued operations) were approximately HK$268,877,000 and
HK$130,623,000 respectively, as comparing to HK$446,873,000
and HK$244,787,000 respectively for the eighteen months ended
30 June 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B e B g B

Details of the decrease in total revenue are discussed below:

Manufacturing and trading of high-end swimwear and
related garment products (“Swimwear segment”)

The turnover generated from Swimwear segment for the Year
was approximately HK$93,322,000 (eighteen months ended
30 June 2013: HK$119,563,000). Gross profit for the Year was
approximately HK$11,579,000 (eighteen months ended 30 June
2013: HK$29,860,000). Gross profit ratio for the Year was 12.41%
(eighteen months ended 30 June 2013: 24.97%). Decrease in gross
profit for the Year was mainly due to the continuously increased in
raw materials cost and shortage of skilled labour which resulted in
increased in sub-contracting charges.

Trading and retail of apparel and related accessories
(“Apparel and related accessories segment”)

The turnover generated from Apparel and related accessories
segment for the Year was approximately HK$172,233,000
(eighteen months ended 30 June 2013: HK$292,325,000). The
decrease in turnover for the Year was mainly affected by the
sluggish retail market in Hong Kong, which leading the demand
for consumer goods is decreased and the consumer spending
sentiment was fallen accordingly. Gross profit for the Year was
approximately HK$117,607,000 (eighteen months ended 30 June
2013: HK202,108,000). Gross profit ratio for the Year was 68.28%
(eighteen months ended 30 June 2013: 69.14%).

Annual Report 2014
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Provision of on-line shopping, advertising and media related
services (“On-line shopping and advertising segment”)

The turnover generated from On-line shopping and advertising
segment for the Year was approximately HK$3,322,000 (eighteen
months ended 30 June 2013: HK$32,639,000). Substantial
decrease in turnover for the Year was mainly due to (i) keen
competition in the on-line group buying market in Hong Kong; (ii)
the on-line group buying market is slowing down in Hong Kong;
and (iii) no income was received from provision of information
technology consulting and on-line marketing services during the
Year (eighteen months ended 30 June 2013: HK$8,487,000). Gross
profit for the Year was approximately HK$1,437,000 (eighteen
months ended 30 June 2013: HK$12,485,000). Gross profit ratio
for the Year was 43.26% (eighteen months ended 30 June 2013:
38.25%).

Impairment of Goodwill

For the Year, the Group's total impairment of goodwill was
approximately HK$65,185,000, comparing to approximately
HK$59,300,000 for the eighteen months ended 30 June 2013.

(i) The impairment of goodwiill relates to the provision of
on-line shopping, advertising and media related services
cash-generating unit (“Provision of on-line shopping,
advertising and media related services CGU")

For the Year, an impairment of goodwill related to Provision
of on-line shopping, advertising and media related services
CGU was approximately HK$36,392,000, comparing to
approximately HK$22,100,000 for the eighteen months
ended 30 June 2013.
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(i)

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited

The recoverable amount of the Provision of on-line shopping,
advertising and media related services CGU is determined
from value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation are those regarding the discount
rate, growth rate and budgeted gross margin and turnover
during the period. The Group estimates discount rate using
pre-tax rate that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the Provision of
on-line shopping, advertising and media related services CGU.
The growth rate is based on long-term average economic
growth rate of the geographical area in which the business
of the Provision of on-line shopping, advertising and media
related services CGU operates. Budgeted gross margin and
turnover are based on past practices and expectations on
market development. The Group prepares cash flow forecasts
derived from the most recent financial budgets approved
by the Directors for the next five years with residual period
using the growth rate of 5%. This rate does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets.
The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from
the Group’s activities of the Provision of on-line shopping,
advertising and media related services CGU is 15.05%. Based
on the past performance, the Group has revised its cash flow
forecasts for the Provision of on-line shopping, advertising
and media related services CGU. The goodwill has therefore
been reduced to its recoverable amount through recognition
of an impairment loss against goodwill of approximately
HK$36,392,000 during the Year.

The impairment of goodwiill relates to the swimwear
cash-generating unit (“Swimwear CGU")

For the Year, no impairment of goodwill relates to Swimwear

CGU was made, comparing to approximately HK$37,200,000
for the eighteen months ended 30 June 2013.

Annual Report 2014

(i)

IRMHE LREY - BE RIES ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ%#
FEBEMAIRESENRBFEREBENE
MEE -FTEEREEMFEANEERR
HHAZMAER - ERENBEEMNER
EEEABR - AEEFEAIRME A TS
HEKHHABECTHRERE LEY -
BEE REEEERBIREEE BN TR
Bz 2 BEATLE AR ETREIR 2R o SR E Ty AR
Mg LEY ESNEBHEERGReE
GBERERBME MR 2 REATFHK
ERRERAEE-FFEENEKREETET)
NBEEAREM SRR CTERAE L
AEEREUCREREBB NIZEERE
A KRR AFUMETBE AR T B
A% IR E - 2L XKW R BAE
Amis e FHRERE - ARIFRE
REERBE LEY BERERBEBRR
ﬁ%%%iﬁé?f%{iZﬁ: ﬁﬂiﬁém%Ztt
E15.05% RBFBEXRR - AEBD B
FTHERMHG EEY BESREREHER
BREEFEBEMN 2 RERETRR - EFt - 75
ZERAFEEABRYBREEIBLE
#36,392,000 )R E E A] g [Bl & 58 -

BARBEZELEN ([RARALELE
]) Bz & B E

AEE  FEEHEXERCEASBNEH
ZEBRE MBE_ZT—=F,-A=+
B 1E+/\{& A 8| &7 %37,200,0007T °



(iii)

17

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The recoverable amount of the Swimwear CGU is determined
from fair value less cost of disposal using the income-
based approach calculation. The key assumptions for the
income-based approach calculation are similar to the value in
use calculation of Provision of on-line shopping, advertising
and media related services CGU as stated in note (i) above.
The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the Directors for the next
five years with residual period using the growth rate of 5%.
This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant markets. The rate used to discount the forecast
cash flows from the Group's activities of manufacturing and
trading of high-end swimwear and related garment products is
11.55%. The calculation further considers a 17.44% discount
on lack of marketability for the controlling interests.

The impairment of goodwill relates to the apparel and
related accessories cash-generating unit (“Apparel and
related accessories CGU”)

The recoverable amount of the Apparel and related accessories
CGU is determined from fair value less costs of disposal using
the market-based approach calculated based on the average
price-to-book ratio and average price-to-sales ratio of several
companies listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (the “comparables”) after considering a 32.88%
discount on lack of marketability for the controlling interests
which is determined by the density function for the maximum
of a Brownian motion process by adopting average annualised
volatility of the comparables and assuming marketing period is
approximately 6 months.
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The assets and liabilities attributable to the Apparel and related
accessories CGU have been reclassified to a disposal group
held for sale at 30 June 2014 and the goodwill allocated to
the Apparel and related accessories CGU was considered
as non-recoverable. An impairment loss against goodwill of
approximately HK$28,793,000 was recognised during the
Year.

Key unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements
are disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements.

Allowance for trade and other receivables

During the year, the total net allowance for trade and other
receivables of approximately HK$1,562,000 is made, as comparing
to approximately HK$10,695,000 for the eighteen months ended
30 June 2013.

During the Year, the Group has issued several demand letters for
the collection of debts to the debtors. Despite several requests
and demand from the Group, debtors defaulted in the repayment
of debts as and when they fell due, the Board has assessed and
believed that the total trade and other receivables of approximately
HK$3,638,000 would have difficulties in recovering and therefore
an allowance for trade and other receivables was provided.

OPERATIONS

During the Year, the Group maintained an effective cost measures
in controlling the cost structure of its operations. Besides, the
Group will be extremely prudent in the expansion of its operations
in an organic manner. We also believe that it is of the Group’s best
interest to explore different sources of income while still maintains
an effective and efficient overhead structure for our supporting
departments in each of the business segments under operation.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had total assets (including
continuing and discontinued operations) of approximately
HK$547,816,000 (2013: HK$640,151,000). As at 30 June 2014,
the Group had short term borrowings (including continuing and
discontinued operations) of approximately HK$36,407,000 (2013:
HK$38,236,000) and long-term borrowings (including continuing
and discontinued operations) of approximately HK$55,710,000
(2013: HK$43,439,000). The increase of total borrowings
(including continuing and discontinued operations) was mainly
due to approximately HK$10,000,000 new loan borrowed by
Charmston Group during the year. As at 30 June 2014, the
Group had bank and cash balances (including continuing and
discontinued operations) of approximately HK$43,565,000 (2013:
HK$72,367,000). The Group has a current ratio of approximately
1.40 comparing to that of 1.97 as at 30 June 2013. As at 30 June
2014, the Group's gearing ratio of 29% was calculated as net debt
divided by total equity (2013: 12%). Net debt is calculated as total
liabilities (including current and non-current liabilities as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position) less cash and
cash equivalents. Total equity represents the equity as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States
dollars and Renminbi, the Group’s exposure to exchange rate risk
is limited. It is the Group’s treasury policy to manage its foreign
currency exposure only when its potential financial impact is
material to the Group. The Group will continue to monitor its
foreign exchange position and, if necessary, utilise hedging tools, if
available, to manage its foreign currency exposure.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting on 23 April 2014, the Share Consolidation
was approved and effective on 23 April 2014, every 5 shares of
HK$0.05 each in the issued and unissued share capital of the
Company were consolidated into one consolidated share of
HK$0.25 each in the issued and unissued share capital of the
Company.

As at 30 June 2014, the total number of issued ordinary shares
were 986,358,758 of HK$0.25 each (2013: 4,931,793,790 of
HK$0.05 each) and total number of issued convertible non-voting
preference shares were 1,103,333,333 of HK$0.15 each (2013:
1,103,333,333 of HK$0.15 each). Pursuant to the terms of the
convertible non-voting preference shares, the conversion price of
the outstanding convertible non-voting preference shares has been
adjusted from HK$0.13 per share to HK$0.65 per share as a result
of completion of the Share Consolidation.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had debt investments of
approximately HK$10,506,000 (2013: HK$10,418,000) which is
classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

HEDGING POLICY

The Group does not have any material exposure to fluctuations in

exchange or interest rates. Therefore, no hedging measures have
been taken at present.
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CREDIT POLICY

The credit terms given to customers are generally based on the
financial strengths of individual customers. The Group generally
allows an average credit term of 30 to 120 days to its trade
customers.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had 426 full time employees
compared with that of 476 in the previous financial year.
The staff costs, including directors’ remuneration, were
approximately HK$83,344,000 (eighteen months ended 30 June
2013: HK$123,149,000). The Group offers a comprehensive
remuneration package and benefits to its full time employees in
compliance with the regulations in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") respectively, including medical scheme,
provident fund or retirement fund. In addition, the Group adopts
a share option scheme for eligible employees (including Directors)
and consultants to provide incentives to participants for their
contributions and continuing efforts to promote the interests of the
Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2014, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.
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As at 30 June 2014, the Company has issued a guarantee
of approximately HK$26,650,000 (as at 30 June 2013:
HK$26,650,000) to a bank in respect of a banking facility granted
to a subsidiary.

Litigation

(i)

The Company received a writ of summons HCA 1977/2013
(“First Writ") dated 16 October 2013 issued from High
Court of Hong Kong by the plaintiff (“Plaintiff”), a third
party, in which the Company and all Directors were named
as defendants. As appeared on the indorsement of claim
in the First Writ, the Plaintiff alleged that in reliance of the
representations made by the Company and its Directors in
the Company information sheet dated 7 February 2013,
5th quarterly report 2012/2013 and annual report 2013 to
the effect that Excel Courage Holdings Limited (“ECHL"),
whose sole owner was Mr. Wong Sin Lai, was a substantial
shareholder of the Company holding 974,180,000 shares
(“Sale Shares”), the Plaintiff entered into an agreement with
ECHL to purchase the Sale Shares. The Plaintiff alleged that
such representations were false and he suffered loss and
damages as a result. The Plaintiff claims against the Company
and its Directors for, among others, damages to be assessed.
All claims of the Plaintiff in the First Writ against the Company
and all its Directors (except Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph) was
dismissed by the High Court of Hong Kong on 9 June 2014.
Subsequently on 28 July 2014, all claims of the Plaintiff in the
First Writ against Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph was dismissed by
the High Court. Please refer to the announcements dated 17
October 2013, 9 June 2014 and 20 August 2014 for details.
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The Company received a writ of summons HCA 2063/2013
(the “Second Writ"”) dated 28 October 2013, issued from High
Court of Hong Kong by the Plaintiff, in which the Company
and all Directors were named as defendants among others.
As appeared on the indorsement of claim in the Second Writ,
the Plaintiff claimed against the defendants for damages of
HK$39,326,264 and interest and costs. The Plaintiff alleged
that, among others, one of the Directors, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen,
Joseph had deceived him by making false statements in the
Company's circular published on 11 June 2012, in various
documents of a company known as Excel and in certain
declarations in the action HCA 1827/2013; that Mr. Lau Chi
Yuen, Joseph had abused the court process and had engaged
in false dealings with the Company’s shares; and that other
Directors of the Company have been negligent and in breach
of their duties of directors. All claims of the Plaintiff in the
Second Writ against the Company and all its Directors (except
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph) was dismissed by the High Court of
Hong Kong on 9 June 2014. Subsequently on 28 July 2014, all
claims of the Plaintiff in the Second Writ against Mr. Lau Chi
Yuen, Joseph was dismissed by the High Court. Please refer to
the announcements dated 29 October 2013; 9 June 2014 and
20 August 2014 for details.

(ii)
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CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 30 June 2014, (i) the Group has pledged property, plant and
equipment with no carrying amount (2013: HK$91,000) to secure
the finance lease payables of approximately HK$84,000 (2013:
HK$156,000); and (i) the Group has pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$8,480,000 (2013: HK$8,608,000) to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group.

PROSPECTS

For the Swimwear segment, with the effort of our management,
the orders on hand increased gradually in comparing with last year.
Coupling with the establishment of new associate, Ricotex, which
is aiming at starting a new factory in Cambodia, we believed that
the contributions of this business segment would be fruitful. Many
of our existing swimwear customers placed more emphasis on our
future production capacity as well as the cost structures. As such,
it is believed that Ricotex can provide workable solutions to tackle
these issues while retaining our customers and providing more
opportunity to secure new orders in future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Apparel and related accessories segment, the apparel retail
market in Hong Kong remains tough and highly competitive in the
year of 2014 and the Company is of the view that the retail market
will remain harsh in the near future. In view of this, the Group
has entered into Subscription and Share Disposal on 28 July 2014,
the management of the Group believed that the Subscription will
relieve the Company from further straining its cashflow into the
Charmston Group. The release of the Company from the corporate
guarantee will further relieve the Group from the contingent
liabilities towards the Charmston Group. The proceeds from the
Share Disposal will further improve the cash position of the Group.

Given the disappointing past performance of the Charmston
Group and the unattractive prospects of the local retail market, the
Group will focus its resources in developing its high-end swimwear
manufacturing and trading business after completion of the
Subscription and Share Disposal.

For the On-line shopping and advertising segment,
following the transformation of our group buying web-site
(Babybamboo.com.hk) into web-based buying platform, the
management of this business segment continuous to place effort
to derive more revenue from this website by performing regular
promotion exercise like offering more variety of products in factory
outlet prices. On the other hand, we also focus on the provision of
online advertising and social networking (e,g. Facebook promotion)
in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Recently, we reactivate our
business cooperation with China Post Hong Kong Limited to act
as its advertising agent in its publication which intends to provide
Hong Kong's shopping information to the PRC travelers.

The management of the Group continues to formulate its business
strategies to optimise the use of its operating and financial
resources. It will also consider to reorganise the non-performing
business segments including but not limited to the disposal or
downsizing of the non-performing business segments.
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2014 (the
“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 21 to the financial statements.

The Group's operations and assets are wholly located in Hong Kong
and the PRC. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year
by business segments and consolidated revenue and non-current
assets of the Group by geographical segments are set out in note 9
to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 61 to 66 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the Year (for the eighteen months ended 30 June 2013:
Nil).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 183 and

184.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There are no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Group during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Particulars of borrowings and pledge of assets of the Group as at

30 June 2014 are set out in notes 27, 29, 30 and 32 to the financial
statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George (appointed on 30 June 2014)
Mr. Chung Man Wai (resigned on 30 June 2014)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Tam Wing Kin
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, Mr. Lau
Chun Fat, George and Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John shall retire at the
Annual General Meeting. All the retiring Directors, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than normal statutory obligations.
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None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Board confirmed that the Company has received, from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The
Company considers that they are independent under Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's Board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the transactions as disclosed in note 41 to the financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Directors of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2014, the interests and short position of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the share capital, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
required standards of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as
follows:

(i) Long positions in Shares

EERFETHRAERRSD HBERHOR
BEEZER

R-ZE-—OFEANA=1H EFERARAEE
TTHRABEARRRREEMBEEE (EER
B REEGRD ([E5REE RG] ) EXVED)
ZBA BRI KBRS B RALRR
AIRBES MG RAIEI2GAFEZER
Mz s SRR - JARIRAIZEIR MR RISE5.46
ES67TEMMAARRRERETEE ZRERE
EMEARFBNEEHMERZAERAF ([H
RFT) 2R FORR AT -

() RRGZHFE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of Type of issued share

Name of Director Shares Nature of interest Interest capital (%)

HERITRE

Espns R&OEE EEME HESER BHRBE DL (%)

(Note 2)

(Htet2)

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, 227,968,399 Interest of a controlled Corporate 23.11%
Joseph (Note 1) corporation

ZERESE 227,968,399  XEHIAEIER NG| 23.11%

(BtaE1)
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(i)

Notes:

1. These shares are held as to 4,620,000 shares by Mr. Lau Chi Yuen,
Joseph personally and as to 223,348,399 shares by JL Investments
Capital Limited, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph.
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph is deemed to be interested in the shares
held by JL Investments Capital Limited.

2. The percentage of issued share capital had been arrived at on the
basis of a total of 986,358,758 ordinary shares in issue as at 30 June
2014.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2014, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2014, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age had any right
to subscribe for the Shares or any share of its associated
corporations.

Short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of
equity derivatives of the Company

As at 30 June 2014, none of the Directors had short positions
in Shares or underlying Shares of equity derivatives of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Substantial shareholders interests and short positions in FERRAROREEROGZEZR AR

shares and underlying shares

As at 30 June 2014, other than the interests of a Director or R

—OFEANA=THE BEX[EEREE

chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the heading  1TERA BRR% 1D « MBI (D R EREFE 2w —
“Directors’ and chief executive's interests in shares, underlying HfiIFTIEBEZEEZRARAETBITRAB ZER
shares and debentures” above, the interests and short positions  4h" AN AL R ARG MIE@R DT ES
of persons in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as B i AR R AIRIEE 5 & B & K71 55336158

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under 1F& 2 Bt 2 S AR :

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

(i) Long positions in Shares () REGZHE
Type of
Name of Shareholder Number of Shares interests
BRER BB &rig2 4= EmEn
Big Good Management Limited 160,400,000 Corporate
Big Good Management Limited 160,400,000 NGT
Mr. Ma Hoi Cheuk (“Mr. Ma") 160,400,000 Individual
(Note 1)
Bl ELE(THxE]) 160,400,000  fAA
(Krat1)
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Notes:

1. Big Good Management Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Ma who
is deemed to be interested in underlying shares held by Big Good

Management Limited.

2. see Note 2 on page 31.

(iij) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of

equity derivatives of the Company

Name of Shareholder

BER®EEEHE

Big Good Management Limited

Big Good Management Limited

Mr. Ma

e

Number of Shares

R4 E

245,384,615
(Note 3)
245,384,615
(Ht53)

245,384,615
(Note 2)
245,384,615
(Htat2)
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Notes:
1. see Note 2 on page 31.
2. see Note 1 on page 33 above.

3. Big Good Management Limited was the holder of 1,063,333,333
convertible non-voting preference shares of HK$0.15 each which
have no voting rights and are convertible into ordinary shares.
Pursuant to the terms of the convertible non-voting preference
shares, the conversion price of the outstanding convertible
non-voting preference shares has been adjusted from HK$0.13 per
share to HK$0.65 per share as a result of completion of the Share
Consolidation.

(iii) Short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of
equity derivatives of the Company

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2014, the Directors of
the Company were not aware of any other person (other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHT TO
SUBSCRIBE FOR EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of equity or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group has entered into the
following connected transactions during the Year and up to the
date of this report:

(1) (i) Lease of 2 self-operated retail stores

For the Year, Easy Harvest International Limited had
signed 2 leasing agreements of self-operated retailed
stores on behalf of the Group and the Group has
made the monthly rental payments under those leasing
agreements directly to the respective landlords.

(ii) Lease of an office premise

For the Year, the Group signed a leasing agreement with
Gain Easy Development Limited for an office premise.
Rental deposit of approximately HK$672,000 had been
paid for the eighteen months ended 30 June 2013.

Mr. Lee Tang Kit, Philip, is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of his beneficial interest in Charmston
(Holdings) Limited (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company); Easy Harvest International Limited and Gain Easy
Development Limited and he is also a director of a subsidiary
of the Company. Accordingly, lease of 2 self-operated retail
stores and lease of an office premise constituted connected
transactions of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.
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The approximate aggregate value and the annual caps of each
category of the continuing connected transactions are set out
below:

Category

Pl

(i) Total rental payment of the 2 self-operated retail stores paid
by the Group directly to respective landlords
(i) AEEEEASEEFXNZE2RBETEEZHS N HEHE

(i) Total rental payment by the Group to Gain Easy Development Limited
for an office premise

(i) AEERRREREBRATDMN —EHRA

it

MEZEENHER

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

FE

BRESIITE :

Approximate
aggregate value
for the
period from
1 July 2013
to 30 June
2014
R-B-—=
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2B BE
HK$'000
BETFT

1,376

1,376

2,304
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Annual cap
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period from
1 July 2013
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2014
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(2) The continuing connected transactions mentioned in

paragraphs 1 (i) and (ii) above have been reviewed by the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company who
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(b) on normal commercial terms; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions stated in
paragraphs 1 (i) and (ii) above in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with Rule
20.38 of the GEM Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year ended 30 June 2014
and up to the date of this report, no connected transactions
were entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a connected person as defined under the GEM
Listing Rules.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s turnover and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers during the Year is
as follows:

The largest customer SN

Five largest customers in aggregate hAREFPEE
The largest supplier A ER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate hREEE ST

At no time during the Year have the Directors, their respective
associates and any Shareholder (who to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company) had any interest in any of the five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of, as at 30 June 2014, any business or
interest of each Director, substantial shareholder and management
shareholders (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and their
respective associates that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any
such person has or may have with the Group.
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance for the Company. During the Year, the Company is in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules except provisions
A. 2.1 and A.4.1 of the CG Code as detailed below:

Code Provision A.2.1

Pursuant to A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Following the resignation of Mr. Chung Man
Wai on 30 June 2014, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, the chairman of
the Company, took up the role of Chief Executive Officer and thus
there has been no segregation of duties for a very short period
during the Year.

Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The current Independent Non-executive Directors are
not appointed for specific terms, but are subject to retirement and
re-election at Annual General Meeting of the Company in line
with the Company’s Articles of Association. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure the
Company'’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than those in the CG Code.
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AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by Messrs. RSM Nelson Wheeler. A resolution will be

submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint RSM Nelson
Wheeler as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 September 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to maintain
high standards of corporate governance for the Company. During
the year ended 30 June 2014 (the “Year”), the Company is in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules except provisions
A. 2.1 and A.4.1 of the CG Code as detailed below:

Code Provision A.2.1

Pursuant to A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Following the resignation of Mr. Chung Man
Wai on 30 June 2014, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, the chairman of
the Company, took up the role of Chief Executive Officer and thus
there has been no segregation of duties for a very short period
during the Year.

Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The current Independent Non-executive Directors are
not appointed for specific terms, but are subject to retirement and
re-election at Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of the Company
in line with the Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”). As
such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure the Company's corporate governance practices are
no less exacting than those in the CG Code.
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THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the

Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions

and performances. Daily operations and execution are delegated

to management. The Board is also responsible for performing the

corporate governance duties set out below:

(a

(d)

All

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and

employees;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

Directors give sufficient time and attention to the Group's

affairs. The Board believes that the balance between Executive

Directors and Non-executive Directors is reasonable and adequate

to provide checks and balances that safeguard the interests of

shareholders and the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING

The Board comprises five members and their positions, as at the
date of this report, are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George (appointed on 30 June 2014)

Mr. Chung Man Wai (resigned on 30 June 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John

Mr. Tam Wing Kin

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of the Directors are
set out in the section of “Directors and Senior Management's
Biographies” on pages 6 to 8 of the annual report for the Year.
All Directors have exercised due care, skill and diligence and
fulfilled fiduciary duties to all the significant issues of the financial,
operational, compliance and risk management of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”). Each Executive
Director has accumulated sufficient and valuable experience to hold
his position in order to ensure that his fiduciary duties have been
carried out in an efficient and effective manner. Save as disclosed,
none of the members of the Board have, in any respect, relation to
each other in any circumstances.
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The Board meets at least four times each year and more frequently ZEZE€HFELE@MUA TREBFTERS
as the needs of the business demand. The Board held 39 fullboard HE® A% -EBE SR ANEE RNEITIONEE
meetings for the Year. Details of the attendance of the Board ZEZE@@H - BFHEZFSKEZHEXAEFE

[

members are as follows: R
Executive Directors HITES Attendance
IR B
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph BB R E 39/39
Mr. Chung Man Wai EXREE 35/39
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George (Note) LS (HaE) 0/39
Independent Non-executive Directors BYkHTES
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHKEL 11/39
Mr. Tam Wing Kin EEREA 11/39
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex IS 12/39
Note: Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George was newly appointed on 30 June 2014. Biar: BlEREER-_SE—NENA=TAHEES
£
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The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also keeps
detailed minutes of each meeting, which are available to all
Directors for inspection. A draft of board minutes are circulated to
all Directors for their comment and approved as soon as practicable
after the board meetings.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information,
and they can ask for further information or retain independent
professional advisors if necessary. They also have unrestricted
access to the advice and service of the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for providing Directors with board papers and related
materials and ensuring that board procedures are followed.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or Director arise, the matter is discussed in an actual
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution.
Independent Non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest are
present at meeting dealing with conflict issues. Board committees,
including the Audit, Compensation, Finance and Nomination
Committees, all follow the applicable practices and procedures used
in board meetings for committee meetings.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
liabilities insurance cover in respect of legal actions against Directors
and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
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The Directors are encouraged to enroll in relevant professional

development programme to ensure that they are aware of their

responsibilities under the legal and regulatory requirements

applicable to the Company. During the Year, the Company arranged

training on compliance of the GEM Listing Rules, to the Directors

and senior management for continuous professional development

of their knowledge and skills in performance of their functions. The

Company Secretary maintains records of training attended by the

Directors. The training attended by the Directors during the Year are

as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Mr. Chung Man Wai

Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George (Note (#))

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Tam Wing Kin
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

BITES

ElEpaginas
BXERE
BPER KL (HE®)
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FHRKEL

LN s
ISR ST

Note (#) Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George was newly appointed on 30 June 2014.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

In order to protect the interest of the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”), the Company appointed three Independent
Non-executive Directors with relevant and sufficient experience and
qualification to perform their duties. One of the three Independent
Non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management expertise,
which complies with the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules.
During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the GEM Listing Rules of 5.06 relating to have at least one-third
in number of its Board members comprising Independent Non-
executive Directors. The three Independent Non-executive Directors
declared and confirmed with the Company on an annual basis of
their independency with the Group in accordance with Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board has assessed and concluded
that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent
in appearance and in substance in view of the definition of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Independent Non-executive Directors do not
hold any office with any connected parties of the Company or have
any financial interests other than those Directors’ remuneration as
disclosed in note 14 to the financial statement.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully recognises that the respective role of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be distinct
and separated. Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph is the Chairman of
the Company and is responsible for leadership to the Board to
ensure that the Board work effectively and all important issues
are discussed in a timely manner while Mr. Chung Man Wai was
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and is responsible for
managing the business of the Group and leading the management
team to implement strategies and objectives formulated by the
Board. A clear division of responsibilities at the Board level has been
maintained to entail a balance of power and authority. Following
the resignation of Mr. Chung Man Wai on 30 June 2014, Mr. Lau
Chi Yuen, Joseph, took up the role of Chief Executive Officer and
thus there has been no segregation of duties for a very short period
during the Year.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND RETIREMENT

The procedures of appointment, re-election an retirement of
Directors are published in the Articles of the Company. The
procedures for shareholders to propose any person to become a
Director of the Company are published on the Company’s website.

Independent Non-executive Directors were not appointed for
specific terms, subject to re-election. Every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, Mr. Lau
Chun Fat, George and Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John shall retire at the
AGM. All the retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors of the Company have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors adopted by the Company throughout the
Year.

The Company has adopted the same code of conduct for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of

inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the code of conduct by the
relevant employees was noted by the Company.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Company established Compensation Committee with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
duties in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date
of this report, the Compensation Committee comprises a majority
members of Independent Non-executive Directors.

At 30 June 2014, the Compensation Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John,
Mr. Tam Wing Kin, Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex and one Executive
Director, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph. Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex is the
Chairman of the Committee.

The Compensation Committee proposed to the Chairman relating
to the remuneration of Executive Directors. The Compensation
Committee also recommended to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration.

The Director’s fee payable to him is determined by making reference
to his duties and responsibilities in the Company and the prevailing
market conditions, as approved by the Board in accordance with
the Company’s remuneration policy pursuant to the authority given
by the Shareholders. No Director has taken part in setting his own
remuneration. Meetings of the Compensation Committee shall be
held at least once a year.
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The Compensation Committee held 3 meetings during the Year.
Details of the attendance of the Compensation Committee
meetings are as follows:

Committee members ZEE8NEB
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph RERESE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHKEL
Mr. Tam Wing Kin BaRfEEE
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex SR

During the Year, there were three meetings held by
the Compensation Committee (i) to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration and bonus
of the Directors and senior management for year 2014 and (ii)
to review the Group's term of reference for the Compensation
Committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee in
2005. The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on nominations, appointment of
Directors and Board succession. The Nomination Committee selects
candidates for directorship with reference to the board diversity
policy and the candidate’s professional knowledge, industry
experience, personal ethics and integrity, and time commitments.
During the selection process, the Nomination Committee may
consider referrals or engage external recruitments professionals
when necessary.
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The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Policy”) in August
2013 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company will monitor the
implementation of this Policy and will from time to time review this
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of this Policy.

The Nomination Committee comprises at least three members, the
majority of whom shall be Independent Non-executive Directors.
The current members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Lau
Chi Yuen, Joseph, Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John, Mr. Tam Wing
Kin and Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex. Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex is
the Chairman of the Committee. Meetings of the Nomination
Committee shall be held at least once a year.
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The Nomination Committee held 3 meetings during the Year.
Details of the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting is
as follows:

Committee members ZEE8NEB
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph RERESE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHKEL
Mr. Tam Wing Kin BaRfEEE
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex SR

During the Year, there were three meetings held by the Nomination
Committee to (i) review the size and composition of the Board and
the Group's term of reference for the Nomination Committee; (ii)
nominate a new director for appointment to the Board; and (iii)
discuss and recommend the Policy to the Board for approval and
adoption, and propose amendments to the committee’s term of
reference.

FINANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a Finance Committee with written terms
of reference to review and approve banking facilities to be granted
or issued by the Company, provision of corporate guarantees by
the Company for its subsidiaries and opening of bank or securities
related accounts. The Finance Committee comprises at least three
members. The current members of the Finance Committee are Mr.
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John, Mr. Tam Wing
Kin and Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex. Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex is the
Chairman of the Committee.
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The Finance Committee held 2 meeting during the Year. Details of
the attendance of the Finance Committee meeting is as follows:

Committee members ZESHE
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph AEREE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John THEXELT
Mr. Tam Wing Kin EEJ e
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex X e

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee is to communicate with the management
of the Company from time to time, including but not limited to
review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company, the effectiveness of its internal control systems, the
interim and annual results of the Company. The Audit Committee is
also responsible for considering the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor and reviewing the impairment
to its independency with any non-audit services performed by the
external auditor.

As at the date of this report, the members of Audit Committee,
which are all Independent Non-executive Directors, are Dr. Lee
Chung Mong, John, Mr. Tam Wing Kin and Mr. Fung Chan Man,
Alex. Mr. Tam Wing Kin is the Chairman of the Committee.
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The Audit Committee held 6 meetings during the Year. Details of
the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

Committee members ZEEKEB
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHKEL
Mr. Tam Wing Kin BaRfEE L
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex SR e

During the Year, there were six meetings held by the Audit
Committee (i) to review the Company’s audited annual results for
the financial year ended 30 June 2013, unaudited first quarterly
results for the three months ended 30 September 2013, unaudited
interim results for the six months ended 31 December 2013 and
unaudited third quarterly results for the nine months ended 31
March 2014; (i) to review the Group's internal control system;
and (iii) to review the Group’s term of reference for the Audit
Committee.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the total fee paid/payable in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by the Company'’s external auditor is
set out below:

Types of services AR 75 & 48
Audit services EZHRTE
Taxation fee 5 E A
Non-audit services IEEZ RS

Total Bt

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary has been a full time employee who has
knowledge of the Company’s affair. The Company Secretary of the
Company is Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan, who is engaged and appointed by
the Board on 3 August 2011. For the Year, the Company Secretary
of the Company confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training.

INTERNAL CONTROL REVIEW AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Proper internal controls not only facilitate the effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, ensure compliance with laws and
regulations, but most importantly, help to manage risk exposure of
the Company. The Company is committed to the risk identification,
risk assessment, evaluation of internal control system and
monitoring of remediation plan to control deficiencies. The Audit
Committee has met with the management of the Company on a
regular basis to review the existing internal control practice.

During the Year, the Board considers that the system of internal
control for the Group is adequate and effective.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced assessment
of the Group's performance and prospects. It is also responsible for
preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group's financial position on a going concern basis and other price-
sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. Management
provides the Board with the relevant information it needs to
discharge these responsibilities.

The responsibilities of the auditor to the shareholders are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 59 and 60.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Procedure for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s Articles, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Any one
or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the tight, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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Procedures for put forward a proposal at a Shareholders’
meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose
resolutions at general meetings under the Company’s Articles or
the Cayman Islands Companies Law. As regard to the procedure
for proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to
the procedures made available under the “Corporate Information”
section (Procedures to propose director) of the Company’s website
at www.luxey.com.hk.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquires to the Board in
writing though the Company Secretary of the Company's website

at www.luxey.com.hk.

Address: Room 702, 7th Floor, Goodluck Industrial Centre,
808 Lai Chi Kok Road, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
Telephone:  (852) 2520 6020
Fax: (852) 2520 6086
Email: admin@luxey.com.hk

The Company Secretary of the Company shall forward the
Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board, where appropriate to answer
the Shareholders’ questions.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant information
to Shareholders in a timely manner. The Company also recognises
that people other than Shareholders, such as potential investors
and the investment community generally may have an interest in
information about the Company. Annual, quarterly and interim
reports offer comprehensive operational and financial performance
information to Shareholders and the AGM provides a forum for
Shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. The
Company regards the AGM as an important event and all Directors,
senior management and external auditor make an effort to attend
the AGM of the Company to address Shareholders’ queries. All the
Shareholders are given a minimum of 20 clear days and minimum
of 20 clear business days' notice of the date and venue of the AGM
of the Company. The Company supports the CG Code's principle
to encourage Shareholders’ participation. The Company has also
complied with the requirements concerning voting by poll under
the GEM Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and
the rights of Shareholders to demand a poll included in circulars
to Shareholders dispatched by the Company and explained by
the chairman of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions
proposed at general meeting are voted separately. The results of the
poll was published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Company has maintained a corporate website
(www.luxey.com.hk) as a channel to promote effective corporate
communication with the investors and the general public. The
website is used to disseminate Company announcements, circulars,
Shareholder information and other relevant financial and non-
financial information in an electronic format on a timely basis.

The Shareholder communication policy is reviewed regularly to

ensure effectiveness and compliance with the current regulatory
and other requirements.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RSM

Audit - Tax - Advisory

“

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LUXEY INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Luxey International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 61 to 182, which comprise the consolidated and Company
statements of financial position as at 30 June 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 30 June 2014, and of the Group's results and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 September 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Continuing operations
Turnover
Cost of sales and service rendered

Gross profit

Other income
Impairment of goodwill
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs
Share of losses of an associate

Loss before tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

Loss for the year/period from continuing

operations

Discontinued operation

Loss for the year/period from discontinued

operation

Loss for the year/period

% A IR g R

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PIF XA =1 H I F/F
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Note
Hri

20

10
22

11

12

13

Eighteen
Year ended months ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
Bz S
“E-mE —T—=F
AB=1+H ANA=TH
HEE E+NEA
HKS$'000 HK$000
BEFT JBETFT
(Restated)
(mE5)
96,644 154,548
(83,628) (111,869)
13,016 42,679
7,999 4,751
(65,185) (59,300)
(3,522) (1,103)
(39,259) (65,599)
(86,951) (78,572)
(2,348) (3,570)
(870) -
(90,169) (82,142)
209 (1,580)
(89,960) (83,722)
(26,141) (10,500)
(116,101) (94,222)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &2 —F—PYF XA =1 HI-F/F

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Loss from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operation

Loss attributable to owners of
the Company

Non-controlling interests
Loss from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operation

Loss attributable to non-controlling
interests

Loss per share
From continuing and
discontinued operations
- basic

— diluted

From continuing operations
- basic

—diluted
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Eighteen
Year ended months ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
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AB=Z1+H ~NA=1H
LEE T AEA
HKS$000 HK$000
BEFT JBETFT
(Restated)
(/E5)
(86,784) (79,699)
(17,607) (5,293)
(104,391) (84,992)
(3,176) (4,023)
(8,534) (5,207)
(11,710) (9,230)
(116,101) (94,222)
HK(10.583) cents i HK(9.834) cents 7Ll
HK(10.583) cents #{ HK(9.834) cents 7Ll
HK(8.798) cents &l HK(9.222) cents &l
HK(8.798) cents %1l HK(9.222) cents 7l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSSAND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
i A 4R AR S Il 4 v W AR R

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PIF XA =1 H I F/F

Loss for the year/period

Other comprehensive income:

Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment

Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Fair value changes of available-for-
sale financial assets

Other comprehensive income for
the year/period, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for
the year/period

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

% B IR Bl R

At 30 June 2014 R-E—mMENHA=4+H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Investment in an associate
Trademark

Available-for-sale financial assets
Club debenture

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Current tax assets

Pledged bank deposits
Bank and cash balances

Non-current assets held for sale

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Bank and other loans
Finance lease payables
Employee benefit obligations
Current tax liabilities

Liabilities directly associated with
non-current assets held for sale

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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Note
Bt

19
20
22
23
24

25
26

27
27

57

28

29

30
S

S

2014 2013
—E-mF ===

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

4,455 16,591

359,811 424,996

17,130 =

- 9,984

10,506 10,418

- 205

391,902 462,194

7,810 51,643

14,969 44,876

- 463

165 8,608

38,214 72,367

61,158 177,957

94,756 -

155,914 177,957

25,817 41,331

- 38,164

- 72

5,378 4,698

5,516 5,851

36,711 90,116

74,663 -

111,374 90,116

44,540 87,841

436,442 550,035
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
i B B IR DL %

At 30 June 2014 R-ZFE—MENHA=+H

Non-current liabilities

Deposits received
Promissory notes

Finance lease payables

Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves

Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of

the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 September 2014
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32
30
33

34
35
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HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B F T

- 270

45,703 43,355

- 84

699 845

46,402 44,554
390,040 505,481
412,090 412,090
(6,596) 97,135
405,494 509,225

(15,454) (3,744)
390,040 505,481
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R NS

At 30 June 2014 R-FE—MENH=4+H

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Available-for-sale financial assets

Current assets

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Due from subsidiaries

Bank and cash balances

Current liabilities
Accruals and other payables
Due to subsidiaries

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Promissory notes

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY
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Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
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Chairman
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2014 2013

—E-IF —T-=F

Note HK$°000 HK$°000
i3 BEFIT BEFT
21 381,609 381,609
24 10,506 10,418
392,115 392,027

26 956 729
21 61,438 143,358
27 20,197 50,217
82,591 194,304

28 2,014 2,133
21 18,249 33,305
20,263 35,438

62,328 158,866

454,443 550,893

52 45,703 43,355
408,740 507,538

34 412,090 412,090
= (3,.350) 95,448
408,740 507,538
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

At1 January 2012

Total comprefensive income for the period
Share options lapsed

Conversion of convertible non-voting preference shares

into ordinary shares (note 34(b)

Exercise of options issued by a non-wholly owned

subsidiary
Purchase of non-controling interests
Repayment of convertible bonds

Issue of new shares under rights issue (nore 74()

Changes in equity for the period

At30June 2013 and 1July 2013

Total comprehensive income and changes in
equity for the year

At30 June 2014
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &2 = F—PUFNH =+ HIFFZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANFREAES
Plantand  Equity-settled
machinery  share-based Capital ~ Convertible ~ Investment Non-
Share Share  Translation  revaluation payment  redemption bond  revaluation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests  Total equity
WRiEE?
HEREE  RbaZR TER
BE RfEE 3 EftER fifEE EAMBER BERE  REE(EE Bitha 88 FEBEE Bi4E
(hote34)  (hote 35N (note I5chi)  fnote 35chy)  (note35eH)  (note5ich)  (rote 35l (note 35chi)
(He)  (BE3)  (Bassonn)  (Wassehy)  (Wasson)  (REssoh)  (REssol)  (HE3soli)
HKS 000 HS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HS000 HS00 HS000 HS000 H$000 HKS 000 H$000 5000
V.49 BT BT Vi av Vi BETT Vi g7 EEFT BT BT V.49 Vi A
350,354 595,332 89) 8 5,634 150 1190 = (437925) 514,655 6,041 520,6%
- - 10 801 - - - (531) (84992) 84712) (9230) (93942)
= - = = (6.270) = = = 4210 = = =
(19,691) 19,691 = = = = = = - = = =
= = = = (1.364) = = = 14n 108 (108) =
- - - - - - - - u7 217 (847) (200)
= = = = = = (1,190) = 1190 = = =
81427 (2,500 = = = = = = = 891 = 897
61,736 17,191 10 801 (5634) = (1,190) (531) (71813) (5430 (9,789) (15.215)
412,090 612523 (78) 809 = 150 = (531) (515,738) 509225 (3,744 505,481
- - 4 568 - = = 8 (104391) (103731) (11,710) (115441)
412,09 612523 (14) 131 - 150 - (443) (620,129) 405494 (15,454) 390,040
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLLOWS

Bl ae e R

For the year ended 30 June 2014 EZ =%

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation (note 12)

Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Interest income

Amortisation of trademark

Depreciation

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Write off of property, plant and
equipment

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Impairment of goodwill

Allowance for inventories

Allowance for receivables

Reversal of allowance for receivables

Interest on promissory notes
written back

Interest on other loan written back

Share of losses of an associate

Operating loss before working
capital changes

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and
other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade and
other payables
Increase/(decrease) in provision for
employee benefit obligations

(Decrease)/increase in deposits received

Cash used in operations

Income tax refunded
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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Eighteen

Year ended months ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
BZE H=E
—E-NF —F-=%
~A=1+H ~NA=+H
IEFE E+NEA
HK$'000 HK. $°000
BEFT BEF T
(90,169) (82,142)
(15,825) (9,174)
(105,994) (91,316)
5,592 7,888
(1,611) (1,191)
416 416
7,678 9,645
- (42)

1,184 713
1,795 -
65,185 59,300
418 3,715
3,638 10,695
(2,076) -
- (103)
(850) (1,596)

870 -
(23,755) (1,876)
(226) 21,838
(2,521) 348
2,866 (30,044)
1,055 (250)
(270) 270
(22,851) (9,714)
1,514 -
(1,520) (6,547)
(22,857) (16,261)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLLOWS
RAaBeRER

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits

Interest received

Purchases of available-for-sale financial
assets

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of trademark

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Capital contribution to an associate

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares

Share issue expenses paid

Repayment of finance lease payables

Finance lease charges paid

Bank and other loans raised

Repayment of bank and other loans

Repayment of promissory notes

Redemption of convertible bonds

Net inception/(repayment) of trust
receipt loans

Interest paid

Purchase of non-controlling interests

Net cash generated from
financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR/PERIOD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR/PERIOD

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Bank and cash balances
Bank and cash balances included in
non-current assets held for sale

For the year ended 30 June 2014
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Year ended months ended

30 June 30 June

2014 2013
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LEE LE+HAEA

Note HK$'000 HK$°000
k2 BEFT BEF T
128 (2,360)

1,611 1,191
- (10,949)
(4,613) (13,657)
- (8,500)

- 51

(9,000) -
(11,874) (34,224)

- 81,427
- (2,500)
(72) (99)
(8) (20)

11,225 23,717
(5,494) (16,743)
- (12,400)
- (12,500)
2,435 (13,705)
(2,139) (2,702)
- (200)

5,947 44,275
(28,784) (6,210)

(18) 61

72,367 78,516

43,565 72,367

38,214 72,367

1 5,351 -
43,565 72267
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B Hie 2 W ok

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &7 —F—PYF A=+ HILF&E

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place
of business is Room 702, 7th Floor, Goodluck Industrial
Centre, 808 Lai Chi Kok Road, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the

financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants that are relevant to its operations and
effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 July 2013.
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
did not result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting
policies, presentation of the Group's financial statements and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years except
as stated below.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 i 2 B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PIF XA =1 H I F/F

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements”

Amendments to HKAS 1 titled Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income introduce a new optional
terminology for statement of comprehensive income
and income statement that has been applied by the
Group. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a statement
of comprehensive income is renamed as a statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and an
income statement is renamed as a statement of profit
or loss. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in either a single statement or in two separate but
consecutive statements.

The amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and
(b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on
items of other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively, and
hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the change. Other
than the above mentioned presentation changes, the
application of the amendments to HKAS 1 did not result
in any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive
income and total comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &7 —F—PYF A=+ HILF&E

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

b. HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”

HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”
specifies the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries,
joint arrangements and associates, and introduces new
disclosure requirements for unconsolidated structured
entities.

The adoption of HKFRS 12 only affected the disclosures
relating to the Group's subsidiaries and associates in the
consolidated financial statements. HKFRS 12 has been
applied retrospectively.

c. HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” establishes a single
source of guidance for all fair value measurements
required or permitted by HKFRSs. It clarifies the definition
of fair value as an exit price, which is defined as a price at
which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability would take place between market participants
at the measurement date under market conditions, and

enhances disclosures about fair value measurements.

The adoption of HKFRS 13 only affected disclosures on
fair value measurements in the consolidated financial
statements. HKFRS 13 has been applied prospectively.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new HKFRSs
would have a material impact on its results of operations and
financial position. The Group does not plan to adopt these
standards prior to their mandatory effective date.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 i 2 B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PIF XA =1 H I F/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
plant and machinery and certain investments.

In prior period, the Company changed its financial year end
date from 31 December to 30 June in order to conform to the
financial year end date of its principal operating subsidiaries.
The current period financial statements cover a twelve-month
period ended 30 June 2014 and the comparative financial
statements cover an eighteen-month period ended 30 June
2013. The comparative amounts are therefore not entirely
comparable.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise their
judgements in the process of applying the accounting policies.
The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to these financial statements are disclosed in note 4 to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B Hie 2 W Gk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &7 —F—PYF A=+ HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation

of these financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the

entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary

and any related accumulated translation reserve.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 i 2% B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &2 —F—PIFNH =1 H I F/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

3. TEEMERE (&)

(a)

RERE (&)

SEANREIRMZR S EHRRARER
MG TIABH - FRIERHEERE
AmEEEELTRE SARER
BRI TALE - WERE  WEAF
ZEFHEREEHAE ABRER
SEEMZ SRR

FFERAESIE W I AN R R E & KA
BAAME QRS - IR R
Ty A& ISR R B AR SR #E 28  B)
HERRZBEANIR NEE R
mMEEBRENMEMEERERA
TR RS 2 51 /57N B D B sk B 18

K2 HE WS AR IR AR AR
NEFEAAZEH DR

B ST I i s AR oR H R B AL
BERSEEM2EKEEE BT A
ZAYNCIE ZE NI E 2L S

FREIRE (ER) ARATF ZEB-PEEH



76

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e % W RE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &7 —F—PYF A=+ HILF&E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Business combinations and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-date
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 i 2 B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PIF XA =1 H I F/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any
excess of the Company’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as
a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss. The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition
to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, available-for-sale
investment), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis
as would be required if the previously held equity interest
were disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e % W RE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 EZ =%

—ENA=FHILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Business combinations and goodwiill (Continued)

(c)

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as
that of other assets as stated in the accounting policy
(x) below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 i 2 B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &2 —F—PIFNH =1 H I F/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Associates (Continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e % W RE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &7 —F—PYF A=+ HILF&E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0

(d)

Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results
in a loss of significant influence represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
associate and (ii) its carrying amount plus any related
accumulated translation reserve. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the
Group continues to apply the equity method and does
not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 i 2 B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PIF XA =1 H I F/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e % W RE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &7 —F—PYF A=+ HILF&E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation currency
as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
translation reserve. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 i 2 B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PIF XA =1 H I F/F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(e)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Plant and machinery are carried at fair values, based on
periodic valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation and impairment losses. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount
of the asset. All other property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e % W RE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &7 —F—PYF A=+ HILF&E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Revaluation increases of plant and machinery are
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that the increases
reverse revaluation decreases of the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss. All other revaluation increases
are credited to the plant and machinery revaluation
reserve as other comprehensive income. Revaluation
decreases that offset previous revaluation increases of
the same asset remaining in the plant and machinery
revaluation reserve are charged against the plant and
machinery revaluation reserve as other comprehensive
income. All other decreases are recognised in profit or
loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
plant and machinery, the attributable revaluation
increases remaining in the plant and machinery
revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained
profits.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost or
revalued amounts less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

20% —50% or
over the lease term,

Leasehold improvements

whichever is shorter
Plant and machinery 20%
Furniture, fixtures and
20% - 50%
20% — 25%

office equipment
Motor vehicles

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 i 2 B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PIF XA =1 H I F/F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(f)

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

(ii) Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is
capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e % W RE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &7 —F—PYF A=+ HILF&E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHHE A
(f) Leases (Continued) H #HE(£E)
(ii) Finance leases (Continued) (i) BEHE (&)
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included HHEAZHEGEERMEM
in the statement of financial position as finance ERMNFIBYAMBARAE -
lease payable. Lease payments are apportioned EFRIE T 5 BE T B IS B ST IA K
between the finance charge and the reduction REEGBEZHRK RHEEHA
of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is B2 MERS IEHE
allocated to each period during the lease term so as RE—RHABAAB IR TAR
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the RE—(EREFE 2 M=K

remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same RREHE T EERBEERE
as owned assets. ZITE G EMER -
(g) Trademark (9) E=E
Trademark is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation PR O IR AN R R 5T 3 85 SR B B 18
and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on 51| BR o 8 58 70 EL25F (5T ] fF A F 8B
a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 25 BREKETH
years.
(h) Club debenture (h) &S
Club debenture with indefinite useful life is stated at BEmRAIERFH 2 gMESFIRKAR
cost less any impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed BEREMREERIE - RESEF
annually or when there is any indication that the club N EIRG ES B BURERE R 2 B
debenture has suffered an impairment loss. REFER -

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2014 & =

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

()

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out basis for the manufacturing of swimwear and
related garment products, or weighted average basis for
other operations. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. The cost of merchandises comprises all costs
of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and/or the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e % W RE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYF A=+ HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control
on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
investment within the timeframe established by the
market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 i % B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PIFNH =1 H I F/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets not classified as trade and other
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Available-for-
sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
these investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income, until the investments are disposed of or
there is objective evidence that the investments are
impaired, at which time the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
recognised in profit or loss. Interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for equity
investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are not subsequently reversed through profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for debt
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently reversed and recognised in profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at
cost less any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e % W RE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYF A=+ HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the allowance is the
difference between the receivables’ carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition. The amount of the allowance is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in
the receivables’ recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2014 & =

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

(o)

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 EZ =%

—ENHA=FHILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

On-line shopping, advertising and media related service
income is recognised when the service is rendered.

Consultancy fee income, commission income and
alteration income is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Compensation income, distribution right fee income
and participation fee income is recognised on an accrual
basis in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
agreement.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYFNH =1 H I F/F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FERFHBE#E)
(s) Employee benefits (s) EERH
(i) Employee leave entitlements () ESEZERA

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group's
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated
at 5% of the salaries and wages subject to a
monthly maximum amount of HK$1,250 (before
1 June 2014)/HK$1,500 (on or after 1 June 2014)
per employee and vest fully with employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYF A=+ HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The employees of the Group in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") are members of a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and wages to the central pension scheme to
fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the central pension scheme
is to meet the required contributions under the
scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

(t) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction or production of qualifying assets, which

are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of

time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are

capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until

such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the

temporary investment of specific borrowings pending

their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PIFNH =1 H I F/F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(u)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations

Non-current assets or disposal group are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the assets or disposal
group are available for immediate sale in their present
condition. The Group must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets or disposal group classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of the assets’ or disposal
group'’s previous carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 EZ =%

—ENHA=FHILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations (Continued)

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss,

which comprises:

—  The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting
the discontinued operation.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 i 2% B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYFNH =1 H I F/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Taxation (Continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYF A=+ HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2014 & =

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(B)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is @ member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A); or

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 5 e % W RE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYF A=+ HIF&E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not
yet available for use are reviewed annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
except goodwill, investments, inventories and receivables
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of any
impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 & =

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYF A=+ HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

The

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when
material.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

key assumptions concerning the future, and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting

period, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PIFNH =1 H I F/F

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(b) Income taxes

(9]

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. The carrying amount
of goodwill at the end of the reporting period was
approximately HK$359,811,000 after an impairment loss
of approximately HK$65,185,000 was recognised during
the year ended 30 June 2014. Details of the impairment
loss calculation are provided in note 20 to the financial
statements.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYF A=+ HIF&E

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade
and other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that the Group's
available-for-sale equity investments are impaired. An
impairment loss of approximately HK$43,325,000
was made during the year ended 31 December 2010,
details of which are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(g) Fair values of plant and machinery

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer
to assess the fair values of the plant and machinery.
In determining the fair values, the valuer has utilised a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United
States dollars and Renminbi (“RMB”) which are the
functional currencies of the principal operating entities of
the Group. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

EEFTREMNEZERR (&)

(9) BMERKBEHAFE

AEBRERH Y EXGEMTERE
K2 RN F{E - EEE RN FER - {4
BEEER Y R E T REFTNEET A
EECEHHE EMEETEER
R 3R B B T 0L

Bt 75 o B T B

$EIZ¥%%ﬁ R EE: SMNER
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5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

((9)

The carrying amount of the bank and cash balances
including pledged bank deposits, available-for-sale
financial assets and trade and other receivables included
in the statement of financial position represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
the Group's financial assets.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

The credit risk on available-for-sale financial assets
and bank and cash balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and other receivables. In order to minimise credit
risk, the directors review the recoverable amount of
each individual debt regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

5. MERBRE

BE)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (o0 "BELER(£Z)
The following table shows the remaining contractual TREREERGEHRZEHE
maturity at the end of the reporting period of the Group's BREBERFE DIEARERBENN
financial liabilities based on undiscounted cash flows and ERAEEARAENRZT A H
the earliest dates on which the Group can be required to B - TREFNEREREHEEME -
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.
Specifically, for borrowings which contain a repayment BRE RESRR ?T’ﬁ%@’ﬂ’%g
on demand clause which can be exercised at the banks'’ KEBZBGHRZEEMES T3
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow BAREERIREAEN E’]E‘? B HA
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be (B ERAITEE 4?{1 MR 25k
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their MRFEEER) 2REMEFAHE
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.
Total
Less than Between Between undiscounted
On demand 1year 1and 2 years 2 and 5 years cash flows
BRER
EER PR—F —-ZWE —EhE BEeRE
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BETT BEFT
At 30 June 2014 —E-NmF
AA=TH
Trade and other payables B 5 RE AR - 44,151 - - 44,151
Promissory notes ENEE = = 50,000 = 50,000
Finance lease payables REREEMNTUR - 80 6 - 86
Borrowings subject to a BEEXEEERLZ
repayment on demand e
clause 19,330 - - - 19,330
Other loans HER - 19,350 10,008 - 29,358
19,330 63,581 60,014 - 142,925
TR (R ARARE Z2PUEER
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 30 June 2013

Trade and other payables

Promissory notes

Finance lease payables

Borrowings subject to a
repayment on demand
clause

Other loan

Deposits received

RZE—=F
NA=TH
FERE 5 REMEER
ENER
BEREEMTE
BEEREERIZ

(=1

EER
Elkme

5. BKEKRER (&)

() "RBELAR (&)
Total
Less than Between Between undiscounted
On demand 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years cash flows
BRI
JEEk PR—F —EmE —EhE Beng
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEFr BEFT BETT BEFT BETFT
- 35,335 - - 35,335
- - - 50,000 50,000
- 80 80 6 166
21,164 - - - 21,164
- 17,850 - - 17,850
- - 270 - 270
21,164 53,265 350 50,006 124,785
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis
of borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
loan agreements. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not consider that it
is probable that the banks will exercise their discretion
to demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such borrowings will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

5. Bt

(0

BEBRER (&)

RBESEE (&)

TR ESREREERKZEER
REBEER BRI ZTERIAE
ZEBMADMN - EREB|AEE 2 B
A BEERRB|ITIARGEITER
BISEERERER EXRE A
1B R AR IR 5 K W o T B8R 2 38 K
RIEE-

agreements.

Total
Less than Between Between undiscounted
1 year 1and 2 years 2 and 5 years cash flows
BARHEH
PR—F —-EME —ELf HeRE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BT T JBETT BT T BT

At 30 June 2014 R-ZE-NF
AA=1+H 17,310 1,482 1,242 20,034

At 30 June 2013 R-Z—=F
ANA=1H 15,719 3,495 2,724 21,938

Interest rate risk

The Group's pledged bank deposits and promissory loans
bear interest at fixed interest rates and therefore are
subject to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from its
other bank deposits and borrowings. These deposits and
borrowings bear interest at variable rates varied with the
then prevailing market condition.

(d) =Rk

A % B BB TR R AN B
132 B 22 S BRI 8 R B
TEFIEER -

AEBZAXRERKELEMRTF
AREE -ZEFERREETIAZE
BRFE - WRER < TSRAME °

FRERE (EB) ARATF ZEBEEH
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 EZ =%

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5.

(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

—ENHA=FHILFE

Except as stated above, the Group has no other

significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities,

the Group's operating cash flows are substantially

independent of changes in market interest rates.

(e) Categories of financial instruments

Mg EEE

BE)

(d) F=Emb (&)

B E AR S - 2R 3 E A B
KB E B R B AR B AR R
BEL RS REAB EBVATS
RS

(e) EWM IR ZEH

2014 2013
—E-mE =Bk
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Financial assets: EMEE:
Loans and receivables (including EXRERER(BERS
cash and cash equivalents) ;RS EEIER) 94,575 124,170
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 10,506 10,418
Financial liabilities: EREE:
Financial liabilities at BHENAGTEZ2RAE
amortised cost 136,184 117,125
(f) Fair values f) A¥E

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets

and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated

statement of financial position approximate their

respective fair values.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

AV {EE

RNTPEERFERMzME2EE R
BFR 5% SO EEEMBEIZEEK
HEREAXNZBR - UTRTFEFE
BEIDRAKARGFERAFEZGHENE
N R=-EBWABREZ AFERBEL:

FIBBARE: AEEARGEAHR
BZHEREEXLRER
AT S 2 WE (R1E
FE)

BB BB BREIEMBRZIHRE
S EERRBECER
AEEAHREH AR
e

FIFWARE: BEXRBZAAER
W AN BUE

AEEZBRRREFRBERES EHE
BEHRREN=EcBAREL-

FRERE (EB) ARATF ZEBEEH
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—ENHA=FHILFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6. NYEETE(E)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 30 June (@ AFEEHFEER_ZT—NENHAH
2014: = tTHZERBEENT:
Fair value measurements using: Total
AFEFERA: At
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2014
Description 1B F1E F2E #3E —E-OF
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BETT BET T BEFT BT T
Recurring fair value measurements: ZEUAFLEFE:
Available-for-sale financial assets tHECHEE
Debt investments BRRE 10,506 = = 10,506
Plant and machinery s K 23 = = 3,103 3,103
Total recurring fair value REMAVEFELE
measurements 10,506 - 3,103 13,609
Total non-recurring fair value FREMNTLETE
measurements: .
Disposal group held for sale FIELE 2 HEAR] - - 20,093 20,093
The fair value measurement of the debt investments R-E—=FA=+H o8&
classified as available-for-sale financial assets was using HEEEREECEHRRECATE

Level 1 at 30 June 2013.

In accordance with HKFRS 5,

the carrying amount of non-

current assets held for sale was written down to its fair

value of approximately HK$94,756,000 and resulting

in a loss of approximately HK$10,142,000, which was

included in profit or loss for the year ended 30 June

2014.
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6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6. DAFVEEE)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on (b) AEIBAFEFEZEEHRK:
level 3:
Disposal
Plant and group 2014
machinery  held for sale Total
BEHERZ —E-NE
Description Edr R K #5s HE A Rl =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JBETFT BT BT T
At beginning of year REA 3,749 - 3,749
Total gains or losses recognised B MRz Wk EEBETE
in profit or loss ik Fid (1,452) (10,142) (11,594)
in other comprehensive REAM 2 EKA
income 784 - 784
Purchases BE 19 - 19
Exchange differences BEH ZHE 3 = 5
Transfers into level 3 R EEIE - 30,235 30,235
At end of year RER 3,103 20,093 23,196

® Include gains or losses for " BERREAREE

assets held at the end of BEZW=HER

reporting period (1,452) (10,142) (11,594)
The total gains recognised in other comprehensive FOHE th 2 A W R 2 W aR AR B RV AR
income are presented in surplus on revaluation of GEEkEMEERERTPIRZME-
property, plant and equipment in the consolidated MERMEE 2 BERBRET o

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

FRERE (EB) ARATF ZEBEEH
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6.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(@)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on
level 3: (Continued)

The total losses recognised in profit or loss including those
for assets held at end of reporting period is presented
in cost of sales and service rendered and loss for the
year from discontinued operation in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 30 June 2014

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the financial controller and the Board of
Directors at least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6. AVEFE(E)
(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group © AEEFERZHEERFEAR_Z—NH
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value FARA=tTHRAVEFEFRERZME

measurements at 30 June 2014: (Continued)

BERfTREABRZEE: (&)

Key unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value FIBATHEFEMERZERTAE
measurements are mainly as below: Rig A\BUEEZ&HIIMT :
Effect on
fair value for
increase of
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Value inputs
12 pnim A BUE
#1E fRERM FABRBABE BE 2AVEZXE
Fair value of disposal group ~ Market comparable Average price book multiple 0.5514  Increase
held for sale approach
RELEZHEARATE T ALEE THEREREES 1
Average price sales multiple 0.5864 Increase
THERHEEREH 20
Book value HK$2,497,000 Increase
fRE(E 75#2,497,0007c &0
Annual sales HK$172,233,000 Increase
FHER #%172,233,0000C  #E10
Discount for lack of 32.88% Decrease
marketability
Rz SRR B
Controlling premium 14.65% Increase
i 12
Fair market value of Combination of market Estimated useful life 11to 14 years Increase
plant and machinery comparable approach
and cost replacement
approach
M R #es 2 R FmiE MBLBERKAEEE bt EAFEH NER14E  Em
Zabt
Adjusting factor 75% t0 100%  Increase
HERE 75%%E100% 10
HREKE (k) ARAR 2L R
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7. TURNOVER

The Group's turnover which represents sales of goods to
customers and revenue from provision of on-line shopping,
advertising and media related services are as follows:

Sales of goods
On-line shopping, advertising and media
related service income

Representing:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation
(trading and retail of apparel and
related accessories) (note 12)

AEBzEXRE HEFZ2ERBEENR
REGEEY EEREREBERSE 2K
ADHTER
Eighteen
Year ended months ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
8z HZE
—E—mF Sl
AA=+H NA=+A
IEEE IE+NA@EA
HK$°000 HK$'000
B F T BEBEF T
EmiHE 265,555 414,234
REBEY BER
1% 5% 48 B8 Al 75 A 3,322 32,639
268,877 446,873
KA :
B ETS 96,644 154,548
B4R TS
(BEENTERM M
B M) (Afat12) 172,233 292,325
268,877 446,873

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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8. OTHER INCOME

Alteration income

Commission income

Compensation income

Consultancy fee income

Distribution right fee income

Design fee income

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Interest income

Interest on promissory notes written back

Interest on other loan written back

Participation fee income

Reversal of allowance for receivables

Reversal of provision for employee
benefit obligation

Sundry income

Representing:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation (note 12)

8. Hiblkz=
Eighteen
Year ended months ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
8=z HE
—E—-EF —E—=fF
ANB=1+H ~NA=+H
ILEE tE+NAEHA
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
R IA 223 512
HalA 202 1,254
BEERA 984 -
BRBRA 7,779 5,235
DIEEBIA 2,537 8,270
JEFTERA 320 79
HEWE WEREE 2 KE
- 42
F B A 1,611 1,191
BEANRERNS - 103
1 [0 H th & ORI & 850 1,596
Z2HEBIRA 1,080 552
JE UK BR SR B e 1 Bl 2,076 —
EERMEERERE
121 60
MBI A 4,102 3,924
21,885 22,818
D=
FREEBER 7,999 4,751
BRI RS (Hat12) 13,886 18,067
21,885 22,818
WREEE (B0 BRAF B PUEER
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION 9. ZEESR

The Group has three reportable segments as follows: THARER=(ErRE DI

Swimwear - Manufacturing and trading kS — HERBESEXE
of high-end swimwear and HEREE @
related garment products

Apparel and related - Trading and retail of apparel fREfRIEE @ — BEERTERMK

accessories and related accessories Ac 14 R4

(discontinued operation) (BRIEEEET)

On-line shopping and  —  Provision of on-line shopping, mEBYR - REKLEBEY BEER

advertising advertising and media related & 288 MR AR T

services

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units RERE 2 A HE D BIHRETRE R KR

that offer different products and services. They are managed BeRBEUEEBRSEML - ARNZEEFER

separately because each business requires different technology PRz MR TSR AR BELE

and marketing strategies. o

The Group's other operating segment includes general AEBZHMEREDHBE —RIEEE

trading business. This segment does not meet any of the Bk AW TFEBERRE D EBHE

quantitative thresholds for determining reportable segment. AEtFE - FRAILEMEESH 2 ER

The information of this other operating segment is included in EBEERTEM]RA-

the ‘others’ column.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the 1 EB 2 B ETIBUR BB TS R R MY s 3Pt

same as those described in note 3 to the financial statements. E MR o 5 2B M 3k B 18 I A B 1 At U

Segment profits or losses do not include other income, finance o BB - RTERE R 1 1T R LA

costs, impairment of goodwill and corporate administrative KEBR DEEELTBEEAHLEES

and other operating expenses. Segment assets do not include BMEE SMES B8 REME—RT

available-for-sale financial assets, club debenture, goodwill BEAZEE - »HEBRITBIEANE

and other assets for general administrative use. Segment BREME-—RITRERZBE-

liabilities do not include promissory notes and other liabilities
for general administrative use.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets

and liabilities:

Year ended 30 June 2014

Revenue from external customers
Segment loss

Depreciation

Share of losses of an associate

Income tax (credit)/expense

Additions to segment non-current assets
As at 30 June 2014

Segment assets
Segment liabilities
Investment in an associate

Eighteen months ended
30 June 2013
Revenue from external customers
Segment profit/(loss)
Depreciation
Income tax expense
Additions to segment non-current assets
As at 30 June 2013
Segment assets
Segment liabilities

HE-Z-|m&
NAZTALEE
RENREF 2 Wi
NHER
&
ElE—MBLARBE
FEH (%) B8R
RENDERYEE
RZZ-WF
~AZTH
PEE
AHEE
i ) AN PR

N

D& o

7]

BE2-2-=%
AA=tHLETER
RENREF 2z

AEEN/ (B8R
&

B 85 i 2% B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE —F—PYF A=+ HI FE

AHREH AR AERABZABEN

Apparel
and related
accessories On-line
(Discontinued shopping and
Swimwear operation) advertising Others Total
PRETR
RS SEBEN
k# (BRLEEEE) RES Hit gt
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BT BT BEFT AT BT
93,322 172,233 3322 - 268,877
(7.799) (36,784) (6,890) - (51,473)
1,604 5,191 422 - 7217
870 - - - 870
(209) 174 - - (35)
148 3,896 569 - 4,613
57,901 94,550 1,916 - 154,367
33,190 74,663 1,435 - 109,288
17,130 - - - 17,130
119,563 292,325 32,639 2,346 446,873
5,449 (24,251) (11,756) 319 (30,239)
1,545 6,367 950 - 8,862
1,580 1,326 - - 2,906
852 20,699 606 - 22,157
31,266 111,298 5,886 2,432 150,882
19,803 65,270 3,576 10 88,659
TR (R ARARE Z2PUEER
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

—ENHA=FHILFE

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss,

assets and liabilities:

Revenue

Total revenue of reportable segments
Elimination of discontinued operation

(note 12)

Consolidated revenue from
continuing operations

Profit or loss

Total profit or loss of reportable segments

Impairment of goodwill
Other profit or loss

Elimination of discontinued operation

(note 12)

Consolidated loss for the year/period

from continuing operations

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited

Wé

=B 4

H%Eﬂ R
(Biat12)

ﬁéﬁ

KEFBERERKZ

RA W
mAREE
AISRE D R RS BE
EESNERED
H s F =k &5 18
MR BRI LER

(Htat12)
REFBEEEEK

FHRNGEEER

Annual Report 2014

g8

DEER ()

AHED
B

PEHKE BR BERAGBZY

BX
B

Eighteen

Year ended months ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013

BZE BHZE
—E—-mF —T—=fF
~A=TH ~NA=1H
IHFE LE+FAEA
HK$°000 HK$'000
BB FT B F T
(Restated)

(re&E5)

268,877 446,873
(172,233) (292,325)
96,644 154,548
(51,473) (30,239)
(65,185) (59,300)
557 (4,683)
26,141 10,500
(89,960) (83,722)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYFNH =1 H I F/F

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.
Assets BE

Total assets of reportable segments AmENHEEMRE
Goodwill EES
Available-for-sale financial assets At ETHmEE
Club debenture FATESH

Other assets HEM&EE
Consolidated total assets REEERE
Liabilities afE

Total liabilities of reportable segments ARESHMBEERE
Promissory notes ZSNE 3/

Other liabilities EmaE
Consolidated total liabilities mEeEBaERE

Apart from the above, the totals of other material items
disclosed in the segment information are the same as the
consolidated totals.

DEER ()
2014 2013
—F-mF ==
HK$000 HK$°000
BT BETT
154,367 150,882
359,811 424,996
10,506 10,418
205 205
22,927 53,650
547,816 640,151
109,288 88,659
45,703 43,355
2,785 2,656
157,776 134,670

TREIEE () ARAT

R Lt E SN Mo BRI E 2 EfE X
HEREEEABEMER-

TR YRR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYF A=+ HIF&E

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. ZHER (&)
Geographical information: EER:
Revenue Non-current assets
[ kRBDEE

Eighteen

Year ended months ended

30 June 30 June
2014 2013 2014 2013

Bz Bz

—E-JNE —T-=F

AB=1H ~NA=1H
LEE E+NER —E-mEF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BEFT BETT BEFT

(Restated)

(8E5)
Hong Kong BB 171,209 317,285 388,497 457,226

PRC except Hong Kong B (& LRI

and Macau 2,925 12,740 3,405 4,968
United Kingdom HE 23,341 13,999 - =
Spain 73 o 11,406 15,815 - -
Hungary ) 77 7 - 3,561 - -
Sweden I 2 16,985 32,498 - -
Macau BF 626 6,259 - =
United States of America 3 16,909 3,313 - =
Netherlands ] 5,509 15,405 - =
Israel W5 4,285 13,604 - ~
France A 475 914 - =
Denmark BE 966 1,507 - 2
Ireland R 11,220 8,397 - -
Singapore IR 1,465 5 - =
Others Hit 1,556 1,576 - -
Discontinued operation B FEEEH (172,233) (292,325) - o
Consolidated total melE 96,644 154,548 391,902 462,194

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based

on the locations of the customers.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

2R E R WS TIAR P P #
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYFNH =1 H I F/F

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. ARG RN A

Eighteen
Year ended months ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
BZE HE
—E-NF —T—=F
ANB=1+H ANAZ=1+H
ILEE tE+NAEHA
HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Finance lease charges B AEEST 8 20
Interest on bank loans RITERA A 1,593 2,702
Interest on convertible bonds AR B 7 A B - 224
Interest on promissory notes ZENES7: TIPS\ 2,348 3,346

Interest on other loans wholly repayable 7B AFRNEEEEZ
within five years HEiERF A 1,643 1,596
5,592 7,888

Representing: PYEE

Continuing operations FEICE T 2,348 3,570
Discontinued operation (note 12) BRI RS (Hat12) 3,244 4,318
5,592 7,888

FRERE (EB) ARATF ZEBEEH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B % B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYF A=+ HIF&E

11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
Provision for the year/period
Overprovision in prior years

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Provision for the year/period

Deferred tax (note 33)

Income tax (credit)/expense

Representing:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation (note 12)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5%
(Eighteen months ended 30 June 2013: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the year/period.

Tax charges on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

1. FiBH (ER) EH

BIEIR IR - BB RSB
£/ HAEE
BEFEBRRE

BIEAR I — R B RS
£/ HAERE

RIEFRLIE (M17£33)
Fiisfi (%) &
RE:

SEREEED

BB ETS (HaE12)

interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

Eighteen

Year ended months ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013

B=E HE
—E—-mF — T =1
NA=1+H ~NA=+H
EFE LE+AEA
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT JEMT T
252 2,759
(80) (87)

172 2,672

155 329
(362) (95)

(35) 2,906

(209) 1,580

174 1,326

(35) 2,906

BITER

ESES

EENEHIBBERE R Gt ER
BER A EI165% (BE T —=F <
B=+HIt+N\{AA:165%)t&-

H b8 2 &SR i NI B IR T IR AN 65 (B 4K
EEBHEBRR 2RITHRE  LREEH

RBREDIHY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e % B RE

11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the

Tax rate is as follows:

Loss before tax
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation (note 12)

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of
16.5% (Eighteen months ended
30 June 2013: 16.5%)

Tax effect of income that is not taxable

Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible

Tax effect of other temporary differences
not recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not
previously recognised

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

Overprovision in prior years

Income tax (credit)/expense

For the year ended 30 June 2014 & =

B A1 518
HEEEET
B AR I BT (Fi712)

RS IR R
T—=FHA=t+HLE+N
BA:165% )5t E 2 FiIE
BRI A 2 T 75 52 &

PRI 2 R E

*ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁz
%R 7] '?/
AERBBHRL TS
ERBEFERER KA
BRoRETE
WBARTRARE 2 EE
BEFEBEBRE

PRt (%), &R

X P

1. 8% (BR) B8R (&)

ZE-mFENA=FHIFFE

TW%W m%%ﬁﬁﬁwﬁﬁiMﬁﬁ
product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits ST =

16.5% (2=

BREEZHER:

Year Eighteen
ended months ended

30 June 30 June
2014 2013

BZE H=E
—E-MmF —T—=fF
~NA=1H ~NA=1+H
IEFEE IE+A@EA
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BBF T
(90,169) (82,142)
(15,825) (9,174)
(105,994) (91,316)
(17,489) (15,067)
(929) (1,510)
14,595 5 555
523 (100)
3,321 4,284
(29) (281)

53 helle2
(80) (87)

(35) 2,906
() HRAE T PH4EEHR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B Hie 2 Wl Gk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYF A=+ HIF&E

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 28 July
2014 entered into between a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Synergy Chain Limited (“Synergy”) and
an independent third party, Synergy disposed of 27.3%
interests in Charmston (Holdings) Limited (“Charmston”),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong at a consideration
of HK$10,000,000. Charmston was engaged in investment
holding, with its subsidiaries engaged in trading and retail of
apparel and related accessories in Hong Kong. The disposal
was expected to complete in October 2014 and the assets and
liabilities of the operation were reclassified as held for sale at
30 June 2014 (note 37).

The loss for the year/period from the discontinued operation is
analysed as follows:

12. CRILEKREXEK

RIEA R 7] 2 2 &M B A & Synergy Chain
Limited ([Synergy | ) B2 — & &7 55 = 7]
VZBHAZE—WNEFLA=Z+NBZ
B &% ° Synergy AR BB %10,000,000
THEREE (RE)ERAE ([HE])
(—FREBFEMKILZAR]) 227.3%HE
o BEE BB IEREY  HINB AR
EEBAREERTER ARG
EEEEAN_E—NE+ AT REE
BERBBR-Z—NFA=+HEH
DRERFEFE (MH&E37) -

REE RIS 25 2 F /BB RS I
o :

Loss of discontinued operation
Write-down of non-current
assets held for sale (note 37) (B13£37)

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

ERIREXRBZER
WORFFER & 2 IERBEE

Year Eighteen
ended months ended

30 June 30 June
2014 2013

BZE BHZE
—ZE—MmF —T—=4
~NB=+H ~NA=+H
HFE LE+A@EA
HK$'000 HK$000
B FT BT T
(15,999) (10,500)
(10,142) -
(26,141) (10,500)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 i 2% B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYFNH =1 H I F/F

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

The results of the discontinued operation for year/period,
which have been included in consolidated profit or loss, are as
follows:

Turnover (note 7) B (KiE7)
Cost of sales SHE B

Gross profit EH

Other income (note 8) Hhezs (47:28)
Selling expenses $HE R X
Administrative expenses THER

Loss from operations KEEE

Finance costs (note 10) BITERAR (BfaE10)
Loss before tax bR 56 A B5 18

FRSIRER (Kfat11)

Income tax expense (note 11)

FHANEBE

Loss for the year/period

During the year, Charmston and its subsidiaries paid
approximately HK$1,771,000 (Eighteen months ended 30
June 2013: received HK$7,729,000) in respect of operating
activities, paid approximately HK$3,895,000 (Eighteen months
ended 30 June 2013: HK$22,638,000) in respect of investing
activities and received approximately HK$5,700,000 (Eighteen
months ended 30 June 2013: paid HK$9,552,000) in respect
of financing activities.

12. CRIEEERK (&)

Bt AGEREZRE HAZELILE
BEBEBEWMT

Year Eighteen
ended months ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
BZE HE
—ZE—-MF —T—=F
~A=TH ~NA=18
IEFEE IE+NEA
HK$°000 HK$000
B FT JBEF T
172,233 292,325
(54,626) (90,217)
117,607 202,108
13,886 18,067
(75,668) (119,406)
(68,406) (105,625)
(12,581) (4,856)
(3,244) (4,318)
(15,825) (9,174)
(174) (1,326)
(15,999) (10,500)

RER - GEREMNBAREMEEEB X
R#)E%1,771,000c (BE_T—=F <
A=+H81E+N\EA : B4 AE%7,729,000
TL)  BLIR B E X A4 3,895,000
(BE—_Z—=FA=Z+HLETNAREA:
751£22,638,0007T ) R LB E /52 WA S
#5,700,000c (BE=ZE—=F A=+
B+ /\# A : Z{J%%9,552,0007T) °

FRERE (EB) ARATF ZEBEEH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B % B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYF A=+ HIF&E

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD

13. £/ HRER

The Group's loss for the year/period is stated after charging/

(crediting) the following:

Auditor's remuneration
Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation

Amortisation of trademark (included in

administrative expenses)

Allowance for inventories (included in
cost of sales and service rendered)

Allowance for receivables

Reversal of allowance for receivables
Gain on disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Write off of property, plant and
equipment

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Net foreign exchange losses

Operating lease charges for land and

buildings (including contingent
rentals of approximately
HK$1,023,000 (Eighteen
months ended 30 June 2013:
HK$2,103,000))

Staff costs including directors’
emoluments

Salaries, bonus and allowances

Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

Provision/(reversal) for employee
benefit obligations

2 Gl
BHEFRMA

il

BREE GIATERR)

FEBEGIARER
RS )

ERHERE

R RRERD

HEME M RRE K

MR BERR
nE HERRERAE

NEBEFE

T REF EERERY
(RERAAEDEE
1,023,000% (B Z
= Bt
EHNER:
#12,103,0007T) )

EIRA(BRESHE)

e TAREE
RINBAMEBIHER

EEEFEL EAE/ (BE)

AEBZE /BABREHR (GEA)T

HIIER :

Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total

FESEEY BAIEEER i
Year Eighteen Year Eighteen Year Eighteen
ended | months ended ended | months ended ended | months ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
BE HE BE BE BE BHE
ZB-mEF | ZE-=£ | ZB-RF | ZT-=F | ZB-OF | ZT-=F
~AAZtR | ~AZTH ~AAZtR | ~AZTH AAZtR | ~AZTH
LEE | ETNEA LEE | ETNEA LEE | ETNEA
HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS"000 HK$000
BETT BEFT BETT BEFT BETT BEFT
840 1,020 400 680 1,240 1,700
83,628 90,341 54,626 90,217 138,254 180,558
2,487 3,278 5191 6,367 7,678 9,645
- - 416 416 416 416
- 1,400 418 2,315 418 3,715
2,3% 1,739 1,244 8,956 3,638 10,695
(1,505) - (571) - (2,076) -
- = - (42) - (42)
1,153 74 3 639 1,184 713
- - 1,795 - 1,795 -
233 34 67 124 300 158
4222 7,046 41,827 66,014 46,049 73,060
38,281 55,569 38,977 60,456 71,258 116,025
2,941 4,481 1,813 2,677 4,754 7,164
1,448 (78) (116) 38 1,332 (40)
42,670 59,978 40,674 63,171 83,344 123,149

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD (Continued)

14.

St 85 i % B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE —F—PYF A=+ HI FE

There is reversal of allowance for receivables of approximately
HK$2,076,000 for the year, being the result of persistent effort

on the management of quality of trade receivables and certain

long overdue debts are recovered during the year.

Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs, depreciation and
operating lease charges of approximately HK$26,408,000
(Eighteen months ended 30 June 2013: HK$21,829,000)

which are included in the amounts disclosed separately above.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of each director were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chung Man Wai (Note (3))
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George (Note (b))

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex
Mr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Tam Wing Kin

UnEE
EXBRE(Hita)
gy
HEREL (W)

BUFUTES

BEXTE
FEARE
BRERL

Notes: (a) Resigned on 30 June 2014.

(b) Appointed on 30 June 2014

13. F HABE (&)
REFRERBAREZBERBDORBE
2,076,0007C " B RN FAFES HR
BH5RWERCEEEE RIREE TR
BB
EHEFTERABEE IRA  FTERK
S E S H 478 126,408,0000T (B E =
T—=FXNA=THILE+NER: B
21,829,0007T) - Jhat A EX 5 RI#EE 2 &
HEA o

14. EERESHM
BEFZMeT:

Retirement benefit

Fees Salaries and allowances scheme contributions Total

e FeREN BIREAEER @it
Eighteen Eighteen Eighteen Eighteen
Yearended | months ended Yearended | months ended Yearended | months ended Yearended | months ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
E e Ez HE 2 HE 1 #z
Z2-mF | ZT-=F | Z%3-Rf | -—%2-=F | ZB-@mF | —T-=f | —B-@F | —T-=F
RAZtH ~NA=TH RAZtH ~A=TH RAZtR ~A=1A RAZTA ~A=1A
tEE | ETAEA tEE | ETAEA LEE | LTAEA LEE | TR
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BEFR BETT BEETT B8 Vi s BT Vi e BRI
- - 2,367 2,775 30 43 2,397 2,818
600 900 1,956 2,934 15 21 2,57 3,855
600 900 433 5,709 45 64 4,968 6,673
9% 108 - = - = 9% 108
9% 108 - - - - 9% 108
9% 108 - - - - 9% 108
288 34 - - - - 288 324
888 1,224 4323 5709 45 64 5,256 6,997

M @) R-B-WEAASTEEE

b) RZZ-—HEFAA=+BHEZfE-

FRERE (EB) ARATF ZEBEEH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B % B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYF A=+ HIF&E

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (Eighteen
months ended 30 June 2013: Nil).

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 2 (Eighteen months ended 30 June 2013: 2) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments of the remaining 3 (Eighteen months
ended 30 June 2013: 3) individuals are set out below:

Basic salaries and allowances HARE @ KER,
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R K48 F 51 21 4 3%

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

14. EEREEFHFMH (£)

FRAYEEFAEBESTHEXFABREL
e s Tk (BE_T—=ZF-A=+
BLIlE+NEA: &) -

FRN AEBRRAERSTMATRERSA
(BE-_Z—=ZFXA=Z+tHLE+N\EA:
ME)EE HMEER EX2H 2 AT+
R Epp=F (BE_ZT—=FA=1
HiIE+NA\RBA: =R8) AT Z2HME a0
T

Eighteen

Year ended months ended

30 June 30 June

2014 2013

BZE HE
—E-NF —2—=

ANA=+H NAZ=T1H

LHEE IE+AEA

HK$000 HK$'000

BT BT T

7,165 9,758

316 428

7,481 10,186
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYFNH =1 H I F/F

14. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

B #1,00,0017TE
75 #1,500,0007C
75 #1,500,001 L&
75 #2,000,0007C
75 #2,500,001 L&
75 #3,000,0007C
75 #4,500,001 T2
7 #5,000,0007C
75 #6,000,001 7T &
75 #6,500,0007C

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000

HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (Eighteen months ended 30
June 2013: Nil).

14. EEREEHFM (&)

BERAFINE AT $05 :

Number of individuals

AT EHE
Eighteen
Year ended months ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
BZE HE
—E-F —E—=F
~A=+H NA=TH
IEFEE 1E+ @A
1 1
1 -
- 1
1 -
- 1
3 3

TREIEE () ARAT

FA AEBEYERAEAEETIESFHTMA
IXME ERMAREBSRIMALRSE
BBy BBAES (B2 —=
FRA=Z+HIETNEAR: &) -

TR YRR



,I(
\

D
J
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &7 —F—PYF A=+ HILF&E

15.

16.

17.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss for the year/period attributable to owners of the
Company included a loss of approximately HK$98,886,000
(Eighteen months ended 30 June 2013: HK$55,747,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 30 June 2014 (Eighteen months ended 30
June 2013: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

(@) From continuing and discontinued operations

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the
year/period attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$104,391,000 (Eighteen months
ended 30 June 2013: HK$84,992,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 986,358,758
(Eighteen months ended 30 June 2013: 864,228,858,
as adjusted to reflect the share consolidation on 23 April
2014, details refer to note 34(a)) in issue during the year/
period, as adjusted to reflect the share consolidation on
23 April 2014.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

15.

16.

17.

EDBREEAEBGF HAEHIE

ARBEBAEBEE /BHAEBBRED
RAQRRTEHRRBEZ BB B
98,886,000 (BE—_ZE—=F,"A=+
B k4 /\f& A : ##55,747,0007T) °

RS

EETEENEBEE_T—NOFA=1H
EFERNEMRE (BE-ZT—Z=FX
A=tHIE+N\ER: &) -

BRER
(a) REFELCEXRBRCRIEREXRY
FRELER

AAREBABLHSRERNEBIED
BEARGBHEEARGEZEHA
B 18 4)75%104,391,0007T (B 2 —F
—Z=ZFXNA=Z+RHLE+TNEA : EE
84,992,0007T ) RNE HIN (T2 &
A% 2 HNAE S 5 81986,358,758/% (4
ABRARBMAR-_ZE—NEMA - +=
BzBRhEH) (BHEZZT—=F
A=+H1E+/\{8H :864,228,858
RCHABEUARBR - —MOFMA
ZTtH=BzRBRHhEMH FBEFLAK
F34(a) )5t E °)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 i 2 B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PIF XA =1 H I F/F

17. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

(a)

(b)

From continuing and discontinued operations
(Continued)

Diluted loss per share

The exercise of the Group’s outstanding convertible non-
voting preference shares for the year ended 30 June 2014
would be anti-dilutive and there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares for the Company’s options granted to
an investor. The exercise of the Group’s outstanding
convertible non-voting preference shares and options
issued by a non-wholly owned subsidiary for the eighteen
months ended 30 June 2013 would be anti-dilutive and
there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the
options granted to an investor. Diluted loss per share was
same as the basic loss per share from the continuing and
discontinued operations for the year ended 30 June 2014
and eighteen months ended 30 June 2013.

From continuing operations

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the
year/period attributable to owners of the- Company of
approximately HK$86,784,000 (Eighteen months ended
30 June 2013: HK$79,699,000) and the denominator
used is the same as that detailed above for basic loss per
share from continuing and discontinued operations.

17. BREE (&)

(a)

(b)

REFBECERBRORIEEERE
(#&)

FREBEER

REBEE-_T-HNF A=TBELLEFE
TTEARRE 2 HARTTE A RERE
RELERSAEAREEER  RE
BERAARRZET —R2REEZE
B EEBEEAR -RBEE-F
—=FRA=THLETNEATER
SEHARITR 2 TR B REE T
Bk —FEEEMBARET IR
REABRBEER IMEEHERT
—EREEZBREZBEEEER
ReBE_T-—MFA=THILF
ERBZE_T—=A=Z+H1t
T\ A ERE#EERER A FERL
ERERIEREXRH 2 BRENER
GEIE

REFESEXRR

FRELER

AAREBABLHSRERNEBED
BERARBHEBEARGEZE,/HA
E5 18 478 86,784,000 (B E -
— =& A=+ HIE+NEAR B
79,699,0007T) 5t & - REAER 2 H &
Bl N FETFFlEt E R BB E X%
REBRIEEEER s BREKRERE
Rza R -

FRERE (EB) ARATF ZEBEEH
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17. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b)

(9]

From continuing operations (Continued)
Diluted loss per share

The exercise of the Group's outstanding convertible non-
voting preference shares for the year ended 30 June 2014
and eighteen months ended 30 June 2013 would be
anti-dilutive and there were no dilutive potential ordinary
shares for the Company'’s options granted to an investor.
Diluted loss per share was same as the basic loss per share
from the continuing operations for the year ended 30
June 2014 and eighteen months ended 30 June 2013.

From discontinued operation

Basic loss per share from the discontinued operation is
HK1.785 cents per share (Eighteen months ended 30
June 2013: HK0.612 cent per share), based on the loss for
the year/period from discontinued operation attributable
to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$17,607,000 (Eighteen months ended 30 June 2013:
HK$5,293,000) and the denominator used is the same
as that detailed above for basic loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations.

The exercise of the Group's outstanding convertible non-
voting preference shares for the year ended 30 June
2014 would be anti-dilutive and there were no dilutive
potential ordinary shares for the Company’s options
granted to an investor. The exercise of the Group’s
outstanding convertible non-voting preference shares
and options issued by a non-wholly owned subsidiary
for the eighteen months ended 30 June 2013 would be
anti-dilutive and there were no dilutive potential ordinary
shares for the options granted to an investor. Diluted loss
per share was same as the basic loss per share from the
discontinued operation for the year ended 30 June 2014
and eighteen months ended 30 June 2013.
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17. BREE (&)

(b) REFELEEK (F)

(9]

SR ER IR

REE-_ZT—NFA=+HLEFE
EBZE_T—=F"A=+tHLETN
B AITEAER 2w ARITHE Al AR A
RERBERSABRESFER &
BMESBARTG IR T —RIREEZ
BhiEsETHSETER - BEZE-F
—MOFEANA=ZTHLEFERHEE=ZT
—=FARNA=Zt+HILE+N\EASKRE
EEBRERARELCEEB CERE
NEBERR -

REBKRIEREXYK

REDRIEKEEG cBRENEE
ABERI17SSBI (22 —=
NA=ZTRHIETNAEA: EA0.612
B ZEBEDIRBEAQAEE A
EEREBERIECEEB T R
B8 497 17,607,000 (B ZE - F
—=FXNA=ZtTRHLE+TNEA B
5,293,0007C) 5t & R FAfE A 2 5 & 8
EXFFAAERBFELCEEBR
ERIEREEB 2 BREREBEH
Z DR .

REBEZE=F-EHFAHA=THLFE
TTEARE 2 WARTTE AT REERE
BEEBKEABEREEER  hitE
BRARRIZET —RBREEZE
B EEBELERR REE_F
—ZFAHAE1 BETAEATTES
KB ARITEZ TR B REET
Bk —EFEENBRARETZER
REBRBEER MEEHERT
—EREEZBREBEEESER
R-BZE_T—MFEANA=THILF
ERBE_Z—=F"A=ZtHL
TABEAZREERIERERTZE
BREEEERERENERMER -
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PIF XA =1 H I F/F

18. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 18. Htt 2 E W&
Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive BT /HAEMEERES B BB
income for the year/period: -2
Year ended 30 June 2014 Eighteen months ended 30 June 2013
BE-E-MERAZTHLEE BEZS-Z4/ A=THILTNEA
Amount Amount Amount Amount
before tax Tax after tax before tax Tax after tax
BRhRAILH HE  BEELSE | KRMeE HE  BBEeR

HKS000  HKS000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
ERFr  ERTr  EETx | EXTT  BFTT BRI

Exchange differences on translating ~ AE BN EBFHEEL

foreign operations ERER 4 - 4 10 = 10
Fair value changes of MEHESREAE L

available-for-sale financial assets ATEE 88 - 88 (531) = (531)
Surplus on revaluation of property, BEtN%E BERIEZEH

plant and equipment 784 (216) 568 1,516 (715) 801
Other comprehensive income E/HRE 2 ERE

for the year/period 876 (216) 660 995 (715) 280

FREIRE (ER) ARATF ZEB-PEEH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B % B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &2 —F—PYF XA =1 H I F/EF

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. % BERRE

Group
biN- |
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
B REBR
HENELEE T R 28 RAERE AE ot
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETFT BEFT BETFT BEFT BETT
Cost or valuation BABREE
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE-——5—f—H 3,012 3,064 6,228 2,210 14,514
Additions R 8,988 329 4,340 - 13,657
Disposals irf - - (33) 8) (41)
Write off 6| (3,132) - (1,670) - (4,802)
Surplus on revaluation EfhR - 356 - - 356
Exchange differences EHER 5 - 19 = 24
At 30 June 2013 and 1 July 2013 RZT—-=%
~NAZTER
“T-=Z%#+A—H 8,873 3,749 8,384 2,202 23,708
Additions R 1,396 19 3,198 - 4613
Write off A (540) - (766) = (1,306)
Surplus on revaluation B AH = (668) = = (669)
Transfer to non-current assets BRERENEY
held for sale ERBEE (9,160) - (9,082) (392) (18,634)
Exchange differences EREHE 3 3 9 - 15
At 30 June 2014 RZE—-F
~NA=t1H 572 3,103 2,243 1,810 7,128
Accumulated depreciation and RAFTERAE
impairment
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——5—f—H 1,065 - 1,333 344 2,742
Charge for the period HARZ 4,206 1,160 3,364 915 9,645
Disposals HE - - (30) 2 (32)
Write off s (2,440) = (1,649) = (4,089)
Write back on revaluation EihFEE - (1,160) - = (1,160)
Exchange differences EREH 4 - 7 - 1
At 30 June 2013 and 1 July 2013 RZE-=%
~NAZTER
“Z—=f+A-AH 2,835 - 3,025 1,257 7,117
Charge for the year FARZ 2,233 1,452 3,474 519 7,678
Impairment loss HEEE 1,026 = 769 - 1,795
Write off s (122) - = = (122)
Write back on revaluation EfhFEE - (1,452) = = (1,452)
Transfer to non-current assets EREERENEZ
held for sale FRPEE (5,783) - (5,598) (363) (11,744)
Exchange differences ERER B) = 4 S 1
At 30 June 2014 R_E-NF
Y= 186 - 1,674 1,413 3273
Carrying amount BEE
At 30 June 2014 RZZ-I%F
TNl 386 3,103 569 397 4,455
At 30 June 2013 REE==f
~NA=t1A 6,038 3,749 5,859 945 16,591

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &2 —F—PIFNH =1 H I F/F

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 30 June 2014 of the
above assets is as follows:

19. ¥1% BERRE (&)

EIEBEER_F-—HFEAA=ZTHZAA
EXBEEINOT

Group
£33
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
G EER
HENELEE BE R BAERE AE “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BETT BEFT
At cost REAE 572 - 2,243 1,810 4,625
At valuation ®itE - 3,103 - - 3,103
572 3,103 2,243 1,810 7,728

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 30 June 2013 of the
above assets is as follows:

FIEBER —T—=FRA=THZKR
BEBEIFOT

Group
A5E
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
B KER
HEMERE s R es YN RE ki)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BETT BEFT BEFT BEFT
At cost BENE 8,873 - 8,884 2,202 19,959
At valuation RIGE - 3,749 - - 3,749
8,873 3,749 8,884 2,202 23,708

The Group's plant and machinery were revalued at fair market
value on 30 June 2014 by reference to market evidence
of recent transactions for similar plant and machinery by
GA Valuation Limited (2013: GA Valuation Limited), an
independent firm of professional valuers.

The carrying amount of the Group’s plant and machinery
would have been approximately HK$1,609,000 (2013:
HK$2,419,000) had they been stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

AEE 7 P M8 BB B R G ERTT
REFHEARAR (ZF—=4F : REFHA
BERAR)R-ZZT—MFENA=TH2REA
U E kO e MR B EMAE-

AR AR 25T E RBEE BT R -
AEERERERBZREESOREEL
1,609,0007C (= F — =4 : & %2,419,000
JL) °

FREIRE (ER) ARATF ZEB-PEEH
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &7 —F—PYF A=+ HILF&E

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 19.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
property, plant and equipment, having regard to the recurring
losses suffered by certain retail shops. These assets are used
in the Group's appeal and related accessories segment.
The reviews led to the recognition of an impairment loss of
approximately HK$1,795,000 in relation to certain leasehold
improvements and furniture, fixtures and office equipment,
that has been recognised in profit or loss.

At 30 June 2013 the carrying amount of a motor vehicle held
by the Group under finance lease amounted to approximately

¥ BERRE (&)

AEERBETEERNEAZ ZEEHES
BENEME BB R&#E 2T EKIE-
ZEEETRARASEE 2 Ran R AARE A4
DE-ZEEMBSERE THEYWESE
EARERM KB RHAERERRRE
B 184978 %1,795,0007T © If 2 A B 25 N FE

MRZTE—=FA=180 AEBERERE
HERA 2/ AEMNREED AE%91,000

HK$91,000. JL °
20. GOODWILL 20. &
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cost RAE
At beginning and end of year/period RE /B RE,HR 745,102 745,102
Accumulated impairment losses it REEE
At beginning of year/period RE,/HAH) 320,106 260,806
Impairment loss recognised R/ BRTER 2 R EE 18
during the year/period 65,185 59,300
At end of year/period RNEHR 385,291 320,106
Carrying amount IREE
At beginning of year/period RE/HAH) 424,996 484,296
At end of year/period REHAR 359,811 424,996

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PIF XA =1 H I F/F

20. GOODWILL (Continued)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash-generating units (“CGUs") that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. Before

20. B9 (&)

REBEHEBZBHERN KBS OEER
HAIXBRNESEH RS ELEM ([3]
TEAEM]) - NBREBRERZAE D

recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount of 2 EBREERT:
goodwill had been allocated as follows:
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—=2-F —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Provision of on-line shopping, advertising $2{t4R FBEY - B& &
and media related services % RS FE B AR 75
Luxey Online Solutions Limited EXEMLERBBERAR]
(“Luxey Online”) (note (a)) ([EX%PE-EE|)
(Kiit(a) 75,343 75,343
Swimwear KB
Easy Time Trading Limited Easy Time Trading Limited
(“Easy Time") (note (b)) ([Easy Time ) (H#7aE®b)) 640,966 640,966
Apparel and related accessories AR % K A8 B4 B &b
Charmston (note (c)) BE (K1atc)) 28,793 28,793
745,102 745,102
AR (R ARAR ZBPUEER
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &7 —F—PYF A=+ HILFE

20. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The recoverable amount of the provision of on-line shopping,
advertising and media related services CGU is determined from
value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth rate and
budgeted gross margin and turnover during the period. The Group
estimates discount rate using pre-tax rate that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGU. The growth rate is based on long-term average economic
growth rate of the geographical area in which the business of the
CGU operates. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five
(2013: five) years with residual period using the growth rate of
5% (2013: 5%). This rate does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant markets. The rate used to discount the
forecast cash flows from the Group's activities of provision of on-line
shopping, advertising and media related services is 15.05% (2013:
14.85%).

Based on the past performance, the Group has revised its cash flow
forecasts for this CGU. The goodwill has therefore been reduced
to its recoverable amount through recognition of an impairment
loss against goodwill of approximately HK$36,392,000 (Eighteen
months ended 30 June 2013: HK$22,100,000) during the year/
period.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

20. &9& (&)

Bt

(a)

RERLEY ESRKBHEBRE RS
ELEM RS RDRIEEAEETE
AT EE o £ R EEEEMEANEIER
REFHRAR BREFHRNZHEEHN X
DA 8 5238 - AR B A A B B3R R B (8 A B
BRIRE IR - ZBAIR KRR B A G H B
RREEE A AREEEREELSENE
2 ERR - ERETIAREELE B
BEERB 2Rz RPTFHQBERERSE
A FHHE E IR K & R Ty ABEE B
MisER B REE-

AEBBERSRZBANIEREIRES
M2 ARAF(ZE—=F  AF)HKEHE
BURBEERZ5% (ZE—=4:5% )1
RERHE - BRI RBAGENS 2T
EHERR - BAREALASEIRER LB
Y BEMEEBEMERE CEB 2RSSR
BRI R A515.05% (ZZT—=4F:14.85%) °

REBEBFERR ASEEEIHBECELSE
fMZBESRETED - Htt - HENE NS
AR (B 518 4075 # 36,392,000t (&
E-_T—=FXA=tAIL+NEAR: B
22,100,0007T ) 3 &= E Al Y Bl & 58 o



141

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 i 2 B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE —F—PF A=+ HI FE

20. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The recoverable amount of the swimwear CGU is determined from
fair value less costs of disposal using the income-based approach
calculation. The key assumptions for the income-based approach
calculation are similar to the value in use calculation of provision
of on-line shopping, advertising and media related services CGU as
stated in note (a) above.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five
(2013: five) years with residual period using the growth rate of
5% (2013: 5%). This rate does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant markets. The rate used to discount the
forecast cash flows from the Group's activities of manufacturing
and trading of high-end swimwear and related garment products
is 11.55% (2013: 17.19%). The calculation further considered a
17.44% (2013: 14.84%) discount on lack of marketability for the
controlling interests.

Key unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value measurements are

mainly as below:

Description Valuation technique
B3 b (B 3 9if
Business enterprise value of Discounted cash flow

Ratio Knitting Factory Limited (“Ratio”) #T:REE&RE
FIER G ER AR AT ([FE]) 2
(B EE

20. & (&)
Hiat: (%)

(b) XEREELEM 2 ATUE ST EREA
EBEFFEER A FER M ERAEE < A
EAESHEURPI (R A M) = 2 RBIR LR _EXXH
()RR z iRt iz LI Y - B IR FE AR
BREHESELABEM 2 EREREE-

AEERERS R BB ROIMES
MZZARRE (ZE—=F  AF)PKE
B RBEREZ5% (ZE—=4:5% )1
RRAE - BRHLRIARBAGENSZ T
EHERR - BAREIAEEREREE
R ERAEAREERZEK 2 BER
BRI R A1155% (Z T —=%:17.19%) °
ZETEE— SR ARHIERRE TS REN
Yri&17.44% (ZF— =14 :14.84% ) °

EIFAFEFEMER 2ERTATBREA
BIBEEHIINT

Key assumptions Value
FERR BE
Discount rate 11.55%
ik

Long-term revenue growth rate 5%
REBWEERE

Gross profit margin rate 14% to 22%
ESIES 14%%£22%
Discount for lack of marketability 17.44%
BRE SRR

FRERE EB) ARATF SRR



142

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e % W RE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &7 —F—PYF A=+ HILF&E

20. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

The recoverable amount of the apparel and related accessories
CGU is determined from fair value less costs of disposal using the
market-based approach calculated based on the average price-to-
book ratio and average price-to-sales ratio of several companies
listed on the Stock Exchange (the “comparables”) after considering
a 32.88% (2013: 25.45%) discount on lack of marketability for the
controlling interests which is determined by the density function for
the maximum of a Brownian motion process by adopting average
annualised volatility of the comparables and assuming marketing
period is approximately 6 (2013: 3) months.

The assets and liabilities attributable to the apparel and related
accessories CGU have been reclassified to a disposal group held for
sale at 30 June 2014 and the goodwill allocated to the apparel and
related accessories CGU was considered as non-recoverable. An
impairment loss against goodwill of approximately HK$28,793,000
was recognised during the year. Key unobservable inputs used in
the fair value measurements are disclosed in note 6 to the financial
statements.

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

20. & (%)
Mzt (#)

()

& RAABREGERESEEEMZAKES
BB TY R BT AR il 4 25 B = T 35 R 1 T R
32.88% (ZZT—=%:2545% )% FRAR
BRER AT E 2 4B Aa ([AIEE AR ])
ZEAMRE R W EERGTE 2 IBAIR
NEER L ERAEE -« MmiEblExiie 5
RBMEZITENERTHENBRERRE Y
HERE WERMAILLBE R R 2 FHEE
WERRBRLEHENA( T — =6
3EAERE -

IREf AR IR ELBEMNELHZEER
BEER=ZZ—NESA=THEHHEAL
BEHE 2 HEME7) - B AR R AARIEC (TR
CEAXBUHEZEEBWRATAIKE -5
£ 7 BB E B 475 %28,793,0007T 1A F A HE
R NFEFEMEAZERNTAEAGA
SR B 5 3R 3R Ml k6P K FE o

21. RMB AR ZRE

FEMERE  BRAE

Unlisted investments, at cost

FE UK B 1 B K08
B RE & 1R

Due from subsidiaries
Less: impairment losses

& Bt B X BRI 5K0R

Due to subsidiaries

BREF(E

Net carrying amount

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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Company
NN

2014 2013
—2-nmF i =&
HK$°000 HK$°000
B TFT EETT
381,609 381,609
240,406 233,966
(178,968) (90,608)
61,438 143,358
(18,249) (33,305)
424,798 491,662

Y, ENHBARRIBEREER 28
Ko 8 (B 7€ 2 K A
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE —F—PJF A=+ HI F&E

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 June 2014 are as

follows:

Name

=L

China Post E-Commerce
Group Limited
TFHEEEEERAA
Easy Time
Easy Time
Luxey International
(Hong Kong) Limited
ERER (BB)ERAA
Synergy

Synergy

Active Capital Limited
BERRAAE

Bestime (Asia Pacific) Limited
2R (ER)ERAA

Bestime (H.K.) Limited

2% (BB)ERRA

Charmston

&

Charmston Apparel Limited

Charmston Apparel Limited

Charmston Apparel
Marketing Limited

Charmston Apparel
Marketing Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation
EMARILIEE
BREREXHE

Hong Kong
)

BVI
RERIES
Hong Kong
BE

BVI
EERZRS

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong

BE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
£
Hong Kong

BB

Issued and
paid up capital

BERTRARKRA

Ordinary shares of
HK$100
100 2 ERR

1 ordinary share of
Us$1
RIETZ SRR

Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000
75110,00070 2 & AR

1 ordinary share of
Uss1
1R1ETZ EBR

Ordinary share of HK$1
BT ERK
Ordinary shares of HK$100

10072 EBIK

Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000

7 110,0007T 2 T AR
Ordinary shares of HK$1,000
A H1,0007T 2 % M

Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000
#%10,00070 2 E iR

Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000
##10,0007 2 ZBK

21. RIBARZRE (&)

R_ZE—HFEARA=+H HBRARIZHF

GRS

Percentage of ownership

BEERADL
2014 2013
—E-mE —F-=f%

Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
H# B Hi k3
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
- 41% = 41%
- 51% - 51%
- 51% - 51%
- 51% - 51%
- 48% - 48%
- 51% - 51%

B () ARAT

Principal activities

TEXEH

Inactive

Eid

Investment holding
REER
Investment holding
REER
Investment holding
RERR

Retailing of men's apparel
BTRETE

Provision of management services

REERRY

Trading of men’s apparel and
provision of management
services

BEESLREUARRHERRS

Investment holding

REER

Retailing of men's apparel
BLRETE

Provision of management services

REERRG

TR YRR
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21. RIE AR Z®RE (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and Issued and
Name operation paid up capital Percentage of ownership Principal activities
SR
8 BRREXHE BRTRBERE BEEBESL TEEK
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=%
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
HE & B &
Charmston Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 51% - 51% Provision of management services
HK$1,000,000
HEERAE BE 711,000,00070 2 LA REETRRE
Easy Chain Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - 51% - 51% Retailing of accessories
HEBRAR & BT ERR TERH
Eternal International Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - 51% - 51% Investment holding
Creation Limited
XERBRAIRERAR EE BTz ERR REER
Expert Concept Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 - 51% - 51% Retailing of men'’s apparel
BREBRAR B BE100T 2 EBR SIREZE
Great Links Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of - 51% . 51% Not yet commenced business
HK$1
BEFRAA BB BTz ERR fe AR B g i 2
HD Production Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 - 27% i 27% Inactive
REEEREBERAR BB 100 2 EBR EE
Luxey Online BVI 100 ordinary shares of - 53% - 53% Investment holding and provision
US$1 each of on-line shopping, advertising
and media related services
EXPIER RERIES BREBIETLZ REERIRES LB
1002 & AR EERFRIEWRY
Mainline Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 - 51% = 51% Retailing of men's apparel
BRARRAA &b 100 2 EBR STRETE
More Chance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - 51% % 51% Not yet commenced business
ZEARAT BB BTz ERR R NG
New Onward Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - 51% e 51% Not yet commenced business
EHBBRRE BB BT ERR NGl
On Bright Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - 51% - 51% Retailing of men'’s apparel
BERRAA &k BT ERR STRETE
On Well Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 = 4% F 41% Retailing of men'’s and ladies’
apparel
TEHRAA & BT ERR BIRETRETE

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE —F—PJF A=+ HI F&E

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

L

Pro-Shine Limited
BRBRAR

Ratio

Gkl

Shining Team Limited

Top Achiever Investments Limited
Top Achiever Investments Limited
Top-Alitalia (Int'l) Limited
BL(BR)BRARA

Yofiel International Group Limited
ZEEREEERAR

REBEES (R BRAR *

Global Post E-Commerce Trading

Limited (“Global Post")
RHEEZS (R BRAA*
([3R3])

TSR HARERRA
("IFImEsE")

TPm et AR KARNF
(NIPmEs])

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation
SRR
BREREXME

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong

BE

Hong Kong
BB

BVI
RERLRE
Hong Kong
)

Hong Kong

BB

PRC

H

Issued and
paid up capital

BERTRARRA

Ordinary share of
HK$1
BT ERR

Ordinary shares of
HK$500,000

F5#500,0007T 2 Z AR

Ordinary shares of
HK$500,000
7 #500,0007T 2 KR

100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
BREBIET
100H% & &A%

Ordinary shares of HK$100
100 2 Bk

Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000
##10,0007 2 EEK

Registered capital of
RMBA4,000,000/ paid up
capital of RMB4,000,000
FMERARK
4,000,0007T/ B R BRA
AR #4,000,0007C

Registered capital of
HK$9,500,000/ paid up
capital of HK$8,100,000
9,500,007t/ E &R R A
#5#:8,100,0007T

21. RIBARZRE (&)

Percentage of ownership

BEERDL
2014 2013
—E-mF =
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
H# B HiE i
- 51% - 51%
- 100% - 100%
- 51% - 51%
- 41% = 41%
- 51% - 51%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%

B () ARAT

Principal activities

TRER

Not yet commenced business

AR B IR E %

Investment holding and trading of
high-end swimwear and related
garment products

REER K EERHKE
WA R BB R 2

Not yet commenced business

HARREE

Investment holding

REER

Retailing of men's apparel

BTRETE

Trading of swimwear

BEXE

Inactive

Inactive

E2x

TR YRR
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

21. RMBARZRE (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and Issued and
Name operation paid up capital Percentage of ownership Principal activities
ML,
8 BEREXLE BRTRBERE BEERADL TEEK
2014 2013
—E-|mF —T-=%
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
H# Gk HE il
REMERKERAR PRC Registered capital of - 100% - 100% Manufacturing and trading of
("REHAE") HK$8,000,000/ high-end swimwear and related
paid up capital of garment products
HK$8,000,000
REMERKERAR HE A EE EEREESRXER
(BREFAEL) 8,000,0007,/ B & & BRA REBREER
7 #:8,000,0007T
RGETESERAR PRC Registered capital of - 51% - - Not yet commence business
(RGBT HK$700,000/
paid up capital of
HK$Nil
RBETESERAR HE AMEREE AR EE
(MRIIBET]) 700,007,/ B4R BA
BRI

s The English name of this company represents management’s best
efforts in translating the Chinese name of this company as no
English name has been registered.

Global Post, TP &E%E, R=AAE and RIIBHETT are
wholly-owned foreign enterprises established in the PRC.

The following table shows information of subsidiaries that
have non-controlling interests (“NCI") material to the Group.
The summarised financial information represents amounts
before inter-company eliminations.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

* AR R AR B AR XA b 2 7]
ZRXEEREEBERALNERPXE
THEIE MK

RE IFIMESE - R A SR ETT
TIRABRL ZINEBE RS-

TRETHBLARZER EHA 2 IFE
Pt ([SFEREE ) HIAKBM S BE
R BB ERMEETI R BIREHEATE S5 -



Name

Principal place of
business/country of
incorporation

% of ownership
interests/voting rights
held by NCI

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net assets/(liabilities)

Accumulated NCI
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

1

TEEE MY/
B AvACTER

FERERAFA L
mRERE
BREBDK

FRBEE
RBEE
FRBRE
RBAE

BE/ (Bf)%E

ERE e Fo

21. RMBAR ZRE (&)

Charmston Luxey Online

i EXELER
2014 2013 2014 2013
—2-pmF —F-=F —E-RE —F-=4F
Hong Kong Hong Kong Hong Kong Hong Kong
&g Bk &g BB
49%/49% 49%/49% 47%147% 47%/47%
HKS$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000
BEF BETT BEFT BT
16,664 20,201 500 676
88,234 91,302 1,416 3,457
(10,007) (353) - =
(93,613) (93,873) (34,309) (29,777)
1,278 17,277 (32,393) (25,644)
4 8,539 (15,458) (12,283)
FRERE (EB) ARATF ZEBEEH
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Revenue

Loss

Total comprehensive
income

Loss allocated to NCI
Net cash (used in)/

generated from
operating activities

Net cash used in investing

activities

Net cash generated
from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease)
in cash and
cash equivalents

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

DT IERELE B R

g2EY (FR) /FiERe

ek

RERDFAREER

REEBHAE/ (FA)Z
ReFE

ReRRAEFED
g/ (i) He

21. RMBARZRE (&)

Charmston Luxey Online
3 EERIEE

Year Eighteen Year Eighteen
ended months ended ended months ended

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2014 2013 2014 2013

Bz BZE Bz BZE
—g-pmE o= —E-mE == e
AB=t+H ANA=TH AB=1+H ANA=1H
LEE E+AEA LEE FTAEA
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$000
BETT BEFT BETT BEFT
172,233 292,325 3,322 23,876
(15,999) (10,500) (6,749) (8,744)
(15,999) (10,500) (6,749) (8,744)
(8,534) (5,207) (3,176) (4,113)
(1,771) 7,729 (6,506) (10,504)
(3,895) (22,638) (569) (600)
5,700 (2,552) 5,613 9,844

34 (17,461) (1,462) (1,260)




Unlisted investments:
Share of net assets
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FLEMRE:
FEIEEEFE

Details of the Group's associate and its subsidiary at 30 June

2014 are as follows:

Name

1

Ricotex Industrial Company
Limited (“Ricotex”)

MEERKXERAR
(TM=E])

Ricotex Industrial Co., Ltd.

MEERXBERAT

Place of incorporation/

registration and

operation
EMEIEE
BRRERHE
Hong Kong

it

Kingdom of Cambodia
REFLIHE

Issued and
paid up capital

ERTRARKRE

Ordinary shares of
HK$40,000,000
#540,000,0007T 2
LiEk

Registered capital of
US$1,000,000/

paid up capital of
USSNIl

A MER
1,000,000% 7T,/
BARRAZET

22 A—EBEQRTRz2KRE

Group
KEH
2014 2013
—F-mF — =
HK$°000 HK$°000
EBETFT BT T
17,130 =
BRREE BERAREMBRARN
E-—MERA=ZTHZHBOT:
Percentage of ownership Principal activities
BEREEOL FTEXH
Direct Indirect
B CE:3
45% - Trading of garment
products
EEREER
= 45% Not yet commenced
business
EENGESES
HRERE (R ARAF ZFPEEH
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22. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The following table shows information of associates that
are material to the Group. These associates are accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. The summarised financial information presented is
based on the HKFRS financial statements of the associate and

its subsidiary.

Name

Principal place of business/country of

incorporation

Principal activities

% of ownership interests/voting rights held

by the Group

At 30 June 2014:
Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Net assets

Group's share of carrying amount of interests

Year ended 30 June 2014:
Revenue

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2014

22. R—EBEQRT2RE (&)

=L

TEEEME EMRZER

TEXER

NS .Fﬂ#ﬁZ%ﬁ%%ﬁT&/
TS E#E D

R-Z-—NEXA=TAH:
FRBEE

MEEE

mEAE

BEFE

AEEEGHED < REE

BE-Z-—NEXA=THLEE:

Wz

FREE
H2E s

iﬁﬂﬂlﬁﬁ%‘

TRETHRAKEMS
AlZER -ZFHER
BMBHERBTAKR 25 2 HHEERH
2NERBERATIRENBARIRELSHY
BREENREL 2 B ®MEKR -

BEZ2HER
718 R R s AR AR

Ricotex

NEE

Hong Kong/
Hong Kong
BE/ BB

Trading of
garment
products

BEEREEM

45%1/45%
HK$ 000
BETIT

1,756
43,869
(7,558)

38,067

17,130

17933

=938
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23. TRADEMARK

Cost
At beginning of year/period
Addition

Transfer to non-current assets
held for sale

At end of year/period

Accumulated amortisation
At beginning of year/period
Amortisation for the year/period

Transfer to non-current assets
held for sale

At end of year/period

Carrying amount

At beginning of year/period

At end of year/period

The Group's trademark protects the design and specification
of the Group’s products. The remaining amortisation period of
the trademark is 23 (2013: 24) years.

23. AR

N

R/ H7]

NE

ERERELEL
FRBEE

RE /IR

RET#

R/ H7]

/BN EH

BRERELEZ
FRBEE

RE IR

AR E

R/ HA7]

RE/HR

¥

Group

EH
2014 2013
—E-ME =gk
HK$000 HK$°000
BEFIT BETFT
10,400 -
- 10,400
(10,400) -
- 10,400
416 -
416 416
(832) -
- 416
9,984 -
- 9,984

PR (FEH) ARAT

AREBEZRENEIER 2R NE
BBz RIBBEBAR B3 (ZF—=
F:24)Fo

TR AR
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24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Unlisted equity securities, at cost
Info-Source Media Limited
("Info-Source”)

R R (E S 1R

Less: impairment losses

Debt investments listed outside

Hong Kong, at fair value R ATE

The fair values of listed investments are based on current
bid prices. Unlisted equity securities were carried at cost
less impairment as they do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured.

In the absence of quoted market price in an active market,
the directors determine whether the Group's investments
in unlisted equity securities are impaired by considering
information from a variety of sources, including the latest
management financial information and the performance of
the investee company. Due to the changes in market condition
of the business of the investee company, an impairment
of approximately HK$43,325,000 was made against the
available-for-sale financial assets during the year ended 31
December 2010.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

FEEMRARE S IRKAME
EREXEAER AR ([ER])

EEBAIIN T2 EBRE

24 THHESHEE

Group and Company

KEBRAERDT
2014 2013
—E-mF —EE—==s
HK$°000 HK$'000
B FoT BT T
43,325 43,325
(43,325) (43,325)
10,506 10,418
10,506 10,418

EHRE 2 A FHEDRIFRFGRIZERE
BRI LMRAESLERERT S
BEEmS®RE MERFEIRTER]SE
Hoat 8 HIF £ TH RN FE I AR AN RURE
HIIBR -

AR DRBMIS TS RE EFSEEA
ERREEDCENER  BRBOIHMRM
ZERMBERRBRERRZKAF

BEAKRERIFLMBRAES2RERR
R AR IRE RBIZEBHZ M5 ER
g g e~ =T e — o — A
FE - #)78%43,325,0007T 2 BB A LAIE 8
At ESRMEE-
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24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

On 11 January 2013, a special resolution was passed by

the shareholders of Info-Source to voluntarily wind

up Info-

Source. It is the directors’ opinion that the winding up of Info-

24, THEHEESHEE (&)

R-ZFE—=F—A+—H FRIBRAE
B-BERIAZREBKERER-EF
R BERBERGIEE AR E 2 M

Source will not have a material impact on the Group's financial RIERERNZE -
position.
25. INVENTORIES 25. 78
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
B F T BT T
Raw materials R 1 %4 3,593 3,165
Work in progress F 8K 2,673 1,563
Finished goods BIFK am 1,544 1,308
Merchandises SN P - 45,607
7,810 51,643
26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. BWE 5 K H MR
Group Company
AEE YN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF “E-=F —E-mF —T-=F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BEFT BETT BEFT BETT
Trade and bills receivables EWE ZHRFIRZHE 12,107 16,324 - =
Prepayments, deposits and B3~ & &
other receivables H it IR 2,862 28,552 956 729
14,969 44,876 956 729
TR () ARAR Z2PUEER
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group normally allows credit terms to customers except
for retail customers ranging from 30 to 120 days. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the
directors.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on the
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

Current to 30 days ENEAZE30K
31 -90 days 31X FE90K
91 — 180 days 91 RZE 180K
Over 180 days FBHE180K

As at 30 June 2014, an allowance was made for estimated

irrecoverable trade and bills receivables of approximately

HK$2,252,000 (2013: HK$2,140,000).

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

26. BRE S K EMARRR (4)

EEBET AEEAFREZEEEHAN
F30E120K - EEEFE PRI REEE
R BRI R EERBFIE-ES
TEHIZE B s B A f o

R A T 2 R SRR R TR
BEZERATMT

Group

REE
2014 2013
—E-IF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFTT BETT
5,335 8,186
4,421 1,501
2,128 3,364
223 3,278
12,107 16,324

i e e = e e P Ry o
WEZEKESERALZEME 2 BHE
#) E7E#2,252,000 (ZE—ZF: BK
2,140,0007T) °
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance for trade and bills receivables:

At beginning of year/period R/ BH)
Allowance for the year/period FHAEE

Amounts written off 58 R I8

Reversal of allowance for the year/period 4 Hf /A 8 & # [a]

Transfer to non-current
assets held for sale

At end of year/period REHR

As of 30 June 2014, trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$2,351,000 (2013: HK$6,773,000) were
past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history of
default. The ageing analysis of these trade and bills receivables

EREREHEZFRBEE

26. BRE S K HEMARRR (4)

EWE SRR L EBBREYR:

Group

rEH
2014 2013
—E2-mF —F==%
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T
2,140 1
3,431 2,139
(180) -
(1,505) -
(1,634) -
2,252 2,140

R-Z—NFEXA=1H BREZFERXR
B4 AB%2,351,000C (ZE—=4F:
75 #6,773,0007T ) 2 %1 BB 3 Rk (E o 1
ENIFEE T B Rk B R
FPEB LEFRKEZERLREZRE
DWWT

is as follows:

Up to 90 days 90K LAY

91 - 180 days 91 RE180K
Over 180 days BB 180K

Group

rEE
2014 2013

—E2-MOF S S

HK$000 HK$°000
BETFT BETT
- 136
2,128 3,364
223 39478
2,351 (5,774
HRERE (R ARAF ZF—EEH



156

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B e 2% B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYF A=+ HIFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group'’s trade and bills receivables
are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars ke
United States dollars ETT
Macau Pataca SR TT
RMB ARKE
Total FER

27. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND CASH
BALANCES

The Group's pledged bank deposits represented deposits
pledged to a bank to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group. The deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and arranged at fixed interest rates range from 0.37% to
0.50% p.a. (2013: 0.38% to 0.50% p.a.) and therefore are
subject to fair value interest rate risk.

As at 30 June 2014, the bank and cash balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$24,399,000 (2013: HK$30,824,000). The bank and cash
balances of the Company denominated in RMB amounted
to approximately HK$19,301,000 (2013: HK$29,248,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

26

27.

. BERE SR EMARRR (£)

AEBZERKEZERNFERZREEIA
TIEE RSB

2014 2013
—E—-UE =FR==1%3
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
326 7,252

11,751 6,517

- 261

30 2,294

12,107 16,324

EHEARTERRBRITREASER

AEEDERBETERACERTETZ
BT BB RITA TASB 2 EE %%
T 3R T DA VE ¥ 5 B8 7 B 420.37% 2£0.50%
(ZE—=%:038%%0.50% ) 2 B FF
FEFE ZEGHRARTFEAFENE
2 gz o

R-BE—NESNA=FTR . NEHI
ARBBBENZHRITIRRELETO R
75 24,399,000 (ZE—=F : BK
30,824,0007T) e KA RIAAREEZR
TRBS/ETFHEB19,301,0007T (=
T — =4 : j5%29,248,0007T) - AR ¥
BN BRI B 2 SNE B IR K0 K
HE-EERMESERT -
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. BHE S RHMERM
Group Company
piN- ] ¥ NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=fF —E-E —E—=f
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000
BYFT JBETT BEFT JBETFT
Trade payables B E SRR 2,415 11,792 - =
Due to a substantial BR—BEERE2ET
shareholder 495 495 - -
Due to an associate [l /NS 9,000 = - =
Accruals and other B ERREMENER
payables 13,907 29,044 2,014 2,133
25,817 41,331 2,014 2,133

The amount due to a substantial shareholder is unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. The amount
due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of
receipt of goods, is as follows:

Current to 30 days BHAZE30K
31 - 90 days 31RE9I0KR
91 - 180 days 91 KE 180K
Over 180 days HBiE180K

N —BEERRZERSEER 28
Ko 4 [B) 7E A8 X - FE AN — [ B 2 R ] 2 3K
B R EEH - R B RARERKER-

RWERBMZEMNE SRAIKRR ST
N

Group

rEH
2014 2013

—E-mF =T

HK$000 HK$°000
BEFT EHTFT
2,231 2,303
105 6,452
19 23
60 2,824
2,415 11,792

B ER) ARATF ZEB-EEHR
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars ke
United States dollars ETT
RMB AR
Total FEE

29. BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Secured bank loans BIBIRITER
Trust receipt loans = FEWIEE K
Other loan Ha B

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

28. BNESREMARRR (&)

AEBZENESRRZEREBEATIE

R

Group

rEE
2014 2013
—E-DF —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T
1,679 6,782
56 43
680 4,967
2,415 11,792

29. SRITRHEMER

Group

rEE
2014 2013

—E-F LT =

HK$000 HK$'000
BT BT T
- 12,581
- 8,583
- 17,000
- 38,164




29. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued)
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYFNH =1 H I F/F

The bank and other loans are repayable as follows: RITREMERAERBPAT
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=F
HK$°000 HK$ ‘000
BEF T BT
Term loans subject to a repayment R E 1R B KB KRR EY
on demand clause EHER - 12,581
On demand or within one year HERS N —FAN - 25,583
- 38,164

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other loans at

AEBERITEEMERZREEN NIE

30 June 2013 are denominated in the following currencies: BeETE
Hong Kong

dollars Euro dollars Total
B BT et
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
BB T T BT T BB TFT
Bank loans IRITER 12,581 - 12,581
Trust receipt loans ErEiRE X 8,364 219 8,583
Other loan H A &R 17,000 - 17,000
37,945 219 38,164

The other loan was unsecured, interest bearing at the
prevailing Hong Kong dollar prime rate of The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and had no fixed terms
of repayment.

X P

(W) ARAF

HEtwERAERA REE LSELZET
BRARFMZIBIIAEREBRNETE
MEBEETFEZHR-

TR YRR
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29. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued)

The interest rates at 30 June 2013 were as follows:

Bank loans |ITER
Trust receipt loans ERBIRE R
Other loan HiER

All bank and other loans are arranged at floating rates, thus
exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 30 June 2013, the Group’s banking facilities were secured
by:

(@) charges over time deposits of the Group;

(b) personal guarantees executed by a director of certain
non-wholly owned subsidiaries;

(c) corporate guarantees executed by the Company and
certain subsidiaries; and

(d) guarantees executed by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government.

At 30 June 2013, the Group had undrawn borrowing facilities
of approximately HK$26,896,000.
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29. RITREMER (&)

RZB—=FA=Z1THZHMEAT:

4.75% 10 6.75% p.a.
BF4.75%=6.75%
4.75% 10 6.75% p.a.
BF4.75%=6.75%
5% p.a.
BF5%

FARITREEMEFR OIS M XRGT S K
NEIEMARRE REMNRER

RZBE—=FEA=1+80 ~&EFETE
BiATSEERR:

(a) ZANSREEMTFBMACD ;

(b) ETHZEWNBRARN —BREFERL
O EAFEAR

© ARFBRETHBRATRILHRAAE
R &

(d) FEABRBITTHRBUT R AHER -

R-EBE—=XA=1H Xx&EEA MK
R Z BB RE #)75#26,896,0007T °
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30. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

Within one year
In the second to fifth
years, inclusive

Less: Future finance
charges

Present value of lease
obligations

Less: Amount due for
settlement within
12 months (shown
under current
liabilities)

Amount due for
settlement after
12 months

It was the Group's policy to lease its motor vehicle under
finance leases. The lease term was five years. At 30 June
2013, the effective borrowing rate was 3.50%. Interest rate
was fixed at the contract date and thus exposes the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. All leases were on a fixed
repayment basis and no arrangements had been entered into
for contingent rental payments. At the end of the lease term,

—E PR
F-ERF
(BEERME)

B RKRBEER

BERERE

B+ AR
N8R

GIREBAEERT)

T-EA%E

B 85 i % B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PIFNH =1 H I F/F

30. MEMEENRE

Group
S 3. ]
Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
EEEENN BEEENHRE
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-RE —EB-=% “E-RE —Z-=F
HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BEFT BETT EYF BETT
- 80 - 72
- 86 - 84
- 166 - 156
N/A N/A
- (10) TEA N F
- 156 - 156

|

AREBRRILIBERMEHERR TH-H
EFRRAF - R_T-—=FA=1H"
EREEFER/3.50%  FERE X HH
T AEERMAR QR THENERERE - Fr
EHERBEEEEEREIEL WHEATLK
A MRLH - RHEHRR  AEEAE
RHEBEE-

the Group had the option to purchase the motor vehicle at a

nominal price.

B ER) ARATF ZEB-EEHR
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30. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (Continued) 30. MEHEENSRE(ZF)

PEREHEENFELDABEE

All finance lease payables were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

AEEREBERNFTBAAGHABEE
BEMMERIELER-

The Group's finance lease payables were secured by the
lessor’s title to the leased asset.

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 31, EERANEHE

Group
N |
Provision for PRC employee
long service severance
payments  compensation
(note (a)) (note (b)) Total
RER%ES HEIES
B BEmmE
(Hiit@)) (H1Et b)) st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETFT BETFT JBEFT
At 1 January 2012 Sy S = 954 3,931 4,885
Provision used ERRE - (210) (210)
Addition/(reversal) of provisions B2 A0,/ (#E) 20 (60) (40)
Exchange differences EH =% - 63 63
At 30 June 2013 and R=Es=t,sHe "i‘EI&

1 July 2013 —Z2—=%+A 974 3,724 4,698
Provision used E FH B o 277) 277)
(Reversal)/addition of provisions & (Bm) /1 (121) 1,453 1,332
Transfer to liabilities directly %Tﬁiiﬁih{”ﬁﬂjﬁz

associated with non-current FRBDEEEEEE AR

assets held for sale (note 37) (B17#37) (3698) = (368)
Exchange differences bEH E% = (7) (7)
At 30 June 2014 RZZ—HmESA=+H 485 4,893 5,378

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014



163

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 i 2% B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE —F—PYF A=+ HI FE

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Provision for long service payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to certain employees who have completed at least five
years of services with the Group. The amount payable is dependent
on the employees’ final salary and years of services, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plan that are
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does
not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

PRC employee severance compensation

Pursuant to the new PRC Labour Contract Law which became
effective on 1 January 2008, the Group is required to pay the
severance compensation to its employees if the employment
contract expires and is not renewed unless the Group has offered
the employment contract on the same terms and conditions but the
offer is rejected by the employee.

Under the Labour Contract Law, the severance compensation is
calculated based on one month'’s salary for each year of employment
completed by the employee and is capped at 12 months’ salary or
12 times 300% of the average monthly salary of the previous year at
the place where the employer is located, whichever is lower. At the
end of each reporting period, the Group has made the provision for
severance compensation for the existing employees in the PRC.

31. EERANEE (&)

Bt

(a)

(b)

REREEBE

REZERFEGRA ARBEARETHERT
EAKRERE KL AF2E TIE BB
HXMEBEFIE RN FIEBURNME 8 2 &
B—ZHSLREFH WRERBEAEE
ZRINEHEI Rt 2R (BIARKEER 2 4
K)o AN B B 77 (AR B B A SN AT 14
ERIETS

Fh S R e

BREE-ZTZENF—A—BRBERZHF
BBERZE HWEBARERALEESSE
AIRSEEARMERER N BERAHE ERE
B RAR R R G REERERMES
FLAERBAIRR SN -

RIBESEERE - BERUEETIRIRES §5TK
—FEBE—EAFSHE M LRR12(E
R#& B MAEEF AFEHE300%2
125 (ABREERE) -REHMEPR K&
ECATEREAREE 2B EE LG -

FRERE (EB) ARATF ZEBEEH
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32. PROMISSORY NOTES

At beginning of year/period R/ BH)
Repayment &
Interest charged B A2
At end of year/period R/ BIR

Promissory notes with principal amount of HK$50,000,000
shall be repayable in one lump sum on the fifth anniversary of
the date of the issue of the promissory notes at no interest.
These promissory notes are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The effective interest rate is 5.325%.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

32. ATEE

Group and Company

KEBRAERDT
2014 2013
—E-mF —EE—==s
HK$°000 HK$'000
B FoT BT T
43,355 52,512
- (12,400)
43,355 40,112
2,348 3,243
45,703 43,355

N4 %8 &6 #50,000,0007T 2 A E4E 78
RENEEEITERZEFRBAFTTE—
IRMEEE - ZERNERBYZRATET
BR - HIERIAER A SRR BN AN E -
B F K AB5.325% °
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33. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following is the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by
the Group:

3. BEHEAE

HASEER T ZRERBREWT

Revaluation of

plant and
machinery
B E R
WERE
HK$000
BT
At 1 January 2012 R==F— == H—H 225
Charge to other comprehensive income REFAE b 2 E U HIBR (a2 718)
for the period (note 18) 715
Credit to profit or loss for the period REARIERYIZ (BaE11)
(note 11) (95)
At 30 June 2013 and 1 July 2013 RZZE—Z=FA=THK
—E—=F+H—H 845
Charge to other comprehensive income REREM 2 E WS HBR (A5F718)
for the year (note 18) 216
Credit to profit or loss for the year (note 11) R EREB2RIIX (H1aF11) (362)
At 30 June 2014 RZE—NEARA=1TH 699

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$68,384,000 (2013:
HK$51,120,000) available for offset against future profits
and are subject to the approval of the respective tax
authorities. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$2,166,000, HK$4,779,000, HK$3,148,000 and
HK$178,000 that will expire in 2015, 2016, 2017 and
2019 respectively. Other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in
subsidiaries and an associate are insignificant.

RS BAR - ANS B 2 R A A (R 8E R 2R
Fz FHIEE B4 A7 68,384,0007T (=
T — = £ : 5 #51,120,0007T) - BZEB 3
AT BHEIE AR EATES 2 RK
i R - W AR A TR IR B EE T IR o R AR
RREEEEEMIIR=ZE—RF =%
—RNEF ZTE—tEFRZIZTE-NFIHZ
#) 75 %2,166,0007T - 4 #4,779,0007T ~ 7
#3,148,0007T & % #178,0007T 2 [F 18 ©
H #5185 18 v] PR HA 45 8 o

NN NG DS S NI il
2R ERGTEK

B ER) ARATF ZEB-EEHR
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34. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

2,800,000,000 (2013: 14,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.25 (2013:
HK$0.05) each

2,000,000,000 convertible non-voting
preference shares of HK$0.15 each

34, A&

2,800,000,000% (= F— =4 :
14,000,000,000/% ) & A E &
BH0.25TT (=T —=F:
75 H0.057T ) 2 EimAk

2,000,000,000% & A% E &
#0157 Z AT AR
|G ERE SR

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

Group and Company

KEBRAERDT
2014 2013
—E—-mF ==

HKS$'000 HK$'000
B F T BEBEF T
700,000 700,000
300,000 300,000
1,000,000 1,000,000
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Issued and fully paid:

986,358,758 (2013: 4,931,793,790)
ordinary shares of HK$0.25 (2013:
HK$0.05) each

1,103,333,333 (2013: 1,103,333,333)
convertible non-voting preference
shares of HK$0.15 each

B 85 i 2% B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYFNH =1 H I F/F

34. RZ& (&)

Group and Company

KEBRAERDT
2014 2013
—E-mE ===
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BEBEF T
ERITRAR:
986,358,758% (— & — =4 :
4,931,793,790/% ) &A% E{E
BH025TL (B — =4
B#0.0570) < T 246,590 246,590
1,103,333,333| (= E— =%
1,103,333,3330%) I EE
01570 2 AT R
B 165,500 165,500
412,090 412,090

FRERE (EB) ARATF ZEBEEH
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 34. BRZAS (&)
A summary of the movements in the authorised and issued RARBE_ZT—NFA=THLEE
share capital of the Company during the year ended 30 June ARBZEZZT—=F"A=+H1E+/\f
2014 and eighteen months ended 30 June 2013 is as follows: RAEERBBEITRAZZSHHPENT :
Number of
convertible
non-voting
Number of Number of preference
ordinary shares of ~ordinary shares of shares of
Note HK$0.05 each HK$0.25 each HK$0.15 each Par value
sREME
BREE BRAEE B%0.157 2
B #0.057T 2 B#0.5T2  THRARERER
i3 EERHA EERHE BERHE EE
000 ‘000 ‘000 HK$000
TR T FR BEFT
Authorised: EE:
At 1January 2012,30June 2013 H-ZT——%—f—H"
and 1 July 2013 =R AZTBR
“Z-=%+f-H 14,000,000 - 2,000,000 1,000,000
Share consolidation Bfn & Bt @) (14,000,000) 2,800,000 - -
At 30 June 2014 RZZ-WF~ A=1H - 2,800,000 2,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTRAR:
At 1 January 2012 R-E——%—F—H 3,097,093 - 1,303,333 350,354
Conversion of convertible ARTARERZERLR
non-voting preference shares ) 206,154 - (200,000) (19,691)
Issue of new shares under REBERETHRG
rights issue (© 1,628,547 - - 81,427
At30June2013and 1 July 2013 RZ=T-=FA A=THK
e 4,931,794 = 1,103,333 412,090
Share consolidation K& @) (4,931,794) 986,359 = =
At 30 June 2014 R=Z-WF A=1H - 986,359 1,103,333 412,090

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@ On 23 April 2014, every 5 shares of HK$0.05 each in the issued
and unissued share capital of the Company were consolidated into
one consolidated share of HK$0.25 each in the issued and unissued
share capital of the Company.

(b) During the eighteen months ended 30 June 2013, 206,153,846
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each were issued as a result of the
conversion of 200,000,000 convertible non-voting preference
shares.

(¢ On 3 July 2012, 1,628,546,648 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
were issued at HK$0.05 per share by way of a rights issue on the
basis of one rights share for every two shares held. The shares rank
pari passu in all respects with the ordinary shares of the Company in
issue on that date.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as
total liabilities (including current and non-current liabilities as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) less
cash and cash equivalents. Total equity represents the equity as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

34. RA (%)

Bt

(@) R-ZE—NFNA=-+=8 ARAFBEET
KRBT A R B 5% AR E S #50.057T 2
BB TIEBARRARB BT RAREITRAS
— RS REESE0.257T 2 & B -

b)) REBE-_T—=F~A=t+HILE+NEA
A+ 206,153,846/% & A% E B 7% #0.057T 2 &
AR T A 3 #2200,000,0000% A #2 A% 48 1 22 4
B MmERIT -

(0 HR=ZZT—=—F+tA=H" 1628546648 %
IRE BB ’E0.057T 2 TR IR G A MR
AR D 3 — IR AR IR 1 < BEE BB AR T =
AR #50.05 e M BT o L FARD B
AREABRBTZ2EBRNE T EZERSE
Wz o

AEEEREAZ BNAREANKEFE
REZREN URKRRIRH TSR K AEAM
R EREN S R REEARREN
AR B AP o

REFIFBEARE AEE A E B
EENTHRRZBEEHR REELATR
RBITHBROREEEENRMDER -

HEEANEMAR - AEBREERE
Lo R ESERE AN o bk b SR DB 7% 0 R RR DA
SRS - ERFENRERRE (BREKF
BMBARRARMRZRB MIERBRIE)
WA NIRRT EFERAGE - BRERERE
REMBARRKRIR 2 o

FRERE (EB) ARATF ZEBEEH
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

—ENHA=FHILFE

34,

The gearing ratios at 30 June 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Total debt
Less: cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Total equity

Gearing ratio

B EER
e MRS EEIAR

BERAMRLX

The increase in gearing ratio during the year resulted primarily

from the increase of bank and other loans and decrease in cash

and cash equivalents.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital

requirements.

35. RESERVES

(a) Group

35.

The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements

therein are presented in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2014

BRA (&)
R-E—WER—_ZT—Z=FA=1+HZ
BEABLERNT:
2014 2013
—E-mE — T =1
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
157,776 134,670
(43,565) (72,367)
114,211 62,303
390,040 505,481
29% 12%

REAN - BEABHREATERRITR
HEmxEmEkREe RReFEERB D

FTELe

AEBY AZRWEMIMSEIN EARE

Ko

fEfe

() =~&£H

AEBZHBEREZEHEHRENEE

BaEkEMEEKERN

FREKET o

= A s iﬁ%
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35. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Company

At 1 January 2012

Loss for the period

Fair value changes of
available-for-sale
financial assets

Share options lapsed

Conversion of convertible
non-voting preference
shares (note 34(b))

Repayment of convertible bonds

Issue of new shares under
rights issue (note 34(c))

At 30 June 2013 and
1 July 2013

Loss for the year

Fair value changes of
available-for-sale
financial assets

At 30 June 2014

WZF—=f-A-H

B
e REED
AFEED

BN RE
HRTRRELZER
SR (H340)

ERIERES
BREARETHRG
(HE340))

RZZ-=%
~NAZTER
2%
tA-H

B
T ESHAR?
ATERE

RZZ-mE
~A=TH

35. & (&)

(b) ZAH
Equity-settled
share-based Capital Convertible  Investment
Share payment  redemption Accumulated bond  revaluation
premium reserve reserve losses reserve reserve Total
NERGEEZ
RERER 2 NHE TRRES
REE HRGEE fktE 2R e REERRR @t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
BEFT BEFT BETT BETT BT BETT AEFT
595,332 4,270 150 (466,407) 1,190 - 134,535
- - - (55,747) - - (55,747)
n . - = = (531) (531)
= (4,270) = 4,270 = = _
19,691 - - - - - 19,691
- - - 1,190 (1,190) - -
(2,500) - - - - - (2,500)
612,523 - 150 (516,694) - (531) 95,448
- - - (98,886) - - (98,886)
- - - - - 88 88
612,523 - 150 (615,580) - (443) (3350)
TR (R ARARE Z2PUEER
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35. RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(i)

(iii)

Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Equity-settled share-based payment reserve

The equity-settled share-based payment reserve
represents the fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised options granted to directors,
employees and consultants of the Group.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 3(d) to the
financial statements.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

35. & (&)

() HEZHERAR

() Ri7EER

(i)
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MaERZESADIKTAATE
PO - HERBERE D RIS B Hi1R -
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35. RESERVES (Continued) 35. f#fE (&)

(0 REZMERAR(Z)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) Plant and machinery revaluation reserve

v)

The plant and machinery revaluation reserve has
been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for plant and machinery
in note 3(e) to the financial statements.

Capital redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal

value of the shares repurchased which was paid out
of the distributable reserves of the Company.

(vi) Convertible bond reserve

Convertible bond reserve represents the equity
component of convertible bonds issued by the
Company.

(vii) Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy in note 3(k) to the financial
statements.

(iv) BERBESEZFE
BEREEEHFEED SR
W B R IE L S 3R R M 73 (e) Pt
IS MR IR 2 2R
BRIE o

(v) EXELORE
BB B F B R AR R A 9k
BES 2R ERpD 2 EE-

(Vi) TR EFFE
AR ESFRHEIEARRIEETT
AR IE S 2 B o

(vii) REE 14 71
RESHBERENREHREFE
BT ESREEATEZ

R FEE YREBEIANT R
KM FE3K) . BFTBUR B IE

FRERE (EB) ARATF ZEBEEH
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants include the full-time and
part-time employees, executives, officers, directors, business
consultants, suppliers, customers, legal and financial advisers
of the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme
became effective on 18 March 2008 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders” approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2014 & =

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
14 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than five years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
the offer of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of the
offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share options were granted, forfeited, exercised or expired
under the Scheme during the year.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On 19 May 2014, the directors resolved to dispose of all or
part of its business in the trading and retail of apparel and
related accessories in Hong Kong. Negotiations with several
interested parties have subsequently taken place. The assets
and liabilities attributable to the trading and retail of apparel
and related accessories business, which are expected to be sold
within twelve months, have been classified as a disposal group
held for sale and are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The disposal group is included
in the Group's apparel and related accessories segment.

36.

37.

B 85 i 2% B Rk

ZE-mFENA=FHIFFE

URGHERZAR(E)

DRSEE 2 BRETE (F)

AR AR REE B RARI4ARAARER
REGHBBE IO UEARTEREZ
2R -BEREREZTEHNHESTETE I
REFRBHEAB M TN ERIEHBRER
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BEREZTEEHESFET ETHER
AT Z&mE : ()RR R BRI ER
REANRABREBIZBWHE: (VAR E]
BRORERIRDBEREZOR QAR
5 AR R P2 FHRHAE K (i) A A 7]
BRORBHEBREZNAY 2 EE:

BEREYT N TRBEAZEREHERR
RE ERERERN -

FAMEBREREZTEIER L R
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FEHEZERDEE
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37. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (Continued) 37. FEHEZKRBEE (£)

R-B-mEAAZ+E DEBBER
g HEARMEAERAES T ERR

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the
disposal group classified as held for sale at 30 June 2014 are

as follows: (1N
HK$°000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment M BB R R 6,890
Trademark P 12 9,568
Club debenture S ES 205
Inventories FE 43,641
Trade and other receivables JEUS E 5 K E Ath BR X 30,866
Current tax assets BNERFH IR & &= 62
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER 8,315
Bank and cash balances RITNRIRE&TF 5,351
Total assets classified as held for sale DHEAREHEZEERE 104,898
Write-down of non-current assets held for sale  #URIF{EL & 2 IR EE (H:512)
(note 12) (10,142)
94,756
Trade and other payables JETE 5 I B M BR 3K 27,627
Bank and other loans RITREMER 46,330
Finance lease payables B E & NI 84
Employee benefit obligations (note 31) BERMNEE (H7E31) 368
Current tax liabilities BNEAFH IR B (& 254
Total liabilities associated with assets classified BN EAFIEHEEEHRB T B ER%E
as held for sale 74,663
Net assets of disposal group HEARR 2 BEFE 20,093
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 i 2% B Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYFNH =1 H I F/F

PENDING LITIGATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following pending litigation:

On 19 January 2004, a winding up petition was filed
against the Company by certain ex-senior employees of the
Group claiming for payment in the sum of approximately
HK$594,000 from the Company in respect of an award/
order dated 20 October 2003 granted by the Labour Tribunal
in respect of the severance and bonus dispute between
the Company and the ex-senior employees. The unsettled
amounts of approximately HK$594,000 were fully accrued
in trade and other payables during the year ended 30 June
2005 and remain outstanding as at 30 June 2013 and 30 June
2014. The case has been ceased to be active since the year
ended 30 June 2005.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group's capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

MR- BERRE

Property, plant and equipment
Contracted but not provided for

38.

39.

EEENEIEE S L=

RIRFFER

RBERR AEBEZ ARRFROT :

RZZEZENME—-—A+NAB AEEE T
SRBEREHEARRZERERE
BEERBERN _ZE=F+A - tTHRAK
AEEZEFARABERCERE RIELL
MBIEL 2 #R AL AARRREL
75 #5594,000TT c ZE R B L A B
594,000t REBE—_TERAF ~A=1H
IEFEEHFAB S REMBERERRS -
PRA—E—=FNA=1tHE-_Z—NF
NAZTEMREH - ZERHEEE=T
ERFANA-tHLEFERETHER-

BREE

AEERRERRZEAALEMT

2014 2013

—E-UE =FH—=ts
HKS$000 HK$000

BT T BT T

- 511

WREEEE () ARATR ZE—PUAEAEH
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYF A=+ HIF&E

40. OTHER COMMITMENTS
(a) Lease commitments
At 30 June 2014 the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

Within one year —F R

In the second to fifth years inclusive 2 —FZ=F HF
(BREEEMF)

After five years hFi&

Operating lease payments represented rental payable by
the Group for certain of its offices, warehouses, retail
stores and director’s quarter. Leases are negotiated for
terms ranging from 1 to 7.3 years with fixed monthly
rentals and certain operating leases are subject to
contingent rents based on a fixed percentage of the
monthly gross turnover in excess of the monthly
minimum lease payments.
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40. HixRiE

(a) HEHRME

RZZ-—MFERA=+H"  BRRRK
PAHEREHE 2 REBEN KL

REAE

Group

rEH
2014 2013

—E-F ===

HK$000 HK$°000
BT BETFT
43,147 36,656
37,961 30,727
- 649
81,108 68,032

REHENFEARBEREE THA
= AR -TEEHNEFEERMNZ
He - HEBBEANF1£7.3F A
BE METREHEBERBAER
REBELEAREHENRZERZ
BEBADLAEZXREERR -
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(b) Licensing arrangements

(o)

For the year ended 30 June 2014 & =

At 30 June 2013 the Group had total distribution
right fee income receivables in respect of licensing
arrangements of approximately HK$8,535,000 which

were receivable within one year.

Royalty payments

At 30 June 2014 the total future minimum royalty

payments under a non-cancellable contract are payable as

follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive

After five years

—FR
E_FEFLF

(BREEMST)

AF1&

40.

B 85 i 2% B Rk

ZE-mFENA=FHIFFE

Hith & ¥ (&)

(b) EEFTRH

(0

R-ZEBE—=FX A=+ x&EF
PR ERT Al 2 HE 2 IR SHIE B A
HREEA) 68,535,000 T I AT A — F 1A

R_TE—WFERA=1TH" BREK

FAIREA N ZENEREEREN
e

Group
AEE

2014 2013

—E-DF —ZT—=F

HK$°000 HK$°000

BETFT BETT

12,698 10,203

64,827 56,207

538,199 531,028

615,724 597,438

TREIEE () ARAT

TR YRR
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYF A=+ HIF&E

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. BEALIRS

BRUMBHRRZTREBEZZEFHEALRS
RSN REBRE HAEEEA

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had

the following transactions with its related parties during the TZ2RHWT:
year/period:
Eighteen
Year ended months ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
Bz BH=E
—E-NF —T—=F
ANA=T1H ~NA=TH
LHFE 1+ \{& A
HK$'000 HK$000
B F T BT T
Commission in relation to rights issue MERA—BEERR
paid to a substantial shareholder itz e (Kat)
(note) - 611
Note: Hiaz -

TERFER—HAARAEFRNEERELEN
P A/NCI

The substantial shareholder is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Chi
Yuen, Joseph, a director of the Company.

42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42. FEHREE
@ RSB -—WELANE #5
Synergy * Datamax Limited & Capital
Master Holdings Limited (& %5 £
B EBETRA249% ) ([DERRE])
K Hoyden Ventures Limited ([E 75 ])
RS ([ E=E]) -

(@ On 9 July 2014, Charmston, Synergy, Datamax Limited
and Capital Master Holdings Limited (together holds
49% of the issued share capital of Charmston) (the
“Minority Shareholders”) and Hoyden Ventures Limited
(the “Purchaser”) entered into a memorandum of
undertaking (the “MOU").
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYFNH =1 H I F/F

42, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a

(Continued)

Pursuant to the MOU, the Purchaser shall subscribe for
new shares in Charmston equivalent to 45% of the
enlarged issued share capital at a total consideration of
HK$30 million (“Subscription”) and Synergy shall sell to
the Purchaser its shares in Charmston equivalent to 15%
of the enlarged issued share capital at a consideration of
HK$10 million (“Share Disposal”). The Subscription and
Share Disposal shall be completed simultaneously and
conditional upon (i) satisfactory due diligence result; (ii)
capitalisation or waiver of the existing shareholders loan
of Charmston; and (iii) the Company having obtained
approval from its shareholders and the Stock Exchange.
The Purchaser shall also procure discharge of the existing
corporate guarantee given by the Company in favour of
Charmston’s banker.

On 28 July 2014, Charmston, Synergy, the Minority
Shareholders and the Purchaser entered into a
subscription agreement regarding the Subscription,
and Synergy and the Purchaser entered into a sale and
purchase agreement regarding the Share Disposal.

The Subscription and Share Disposal have not been
completed up to the date of approval of these financial
statements. The Directors estimate that upon completion,
the Group will record a loss on disposal of approximately
HK$4.2 million. Upon completion of the Subscription and
Share Disposal, the Group will hold approximately 13%
of the issued share capital of Charmston. Charmston will
cease to be a subsidiary of the Company and the financial
results and position of Charmston and its subsidiaries
will be deconsolidated from the financial statements of
the Group and will be accounted for as available-for-sale
financial assets.

42. RERRSER (&)

(a

(&

BIEmBEESE BEAEREBERAER
BB RE BITIRA 245% 2 ¥k
17 #B A (B &7 %30,000,0007T (R
BE=1E]) - KSynergyi§MIE A HEH
REE 2 BERNEERBEITRAZ
15% 2 &5 - 1X.{8 & % #10,000,000
T ([RMDEE]) -REEERRM W
ENRRTRKITAFI)EREELS
BEM: (NENME e 2RE
REEF: RNAQAFIEBERER
Bk 2 FTERAS L o B 75 IR AR (5 AR B
RARAGEE 2 RITAIZEAELZ
WBREER-

RZZE—mELA=+/\B - fer-
Synergy LERERESEHRES
AT M R W - MSynergyt B 5 E
RO EHEFT I EE -

REFEERROHELEEEZZENHR
FRZBEBEBRRTTK c EEEE R
TKE AEBERSHESEOAR
75 #4,200,0007T ° R R B8 IR D
HETKRE AEBRRREHEHFDE
TRARAI3% KB RARF]
ZHBAT MGEHSE 2B HEE
Rkt B A& B 2 B Bk P AR bR
FREARLBARIEATHEESE
BE-

FRERE (EB) ARATF ZEBEEH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 5 e % W RE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &% —F—PYF A=+ HIF&E

42, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

For details of the Subscription and Share Disposal, please
refer to announcements of the Company dated 9 July
2014 and 31 July 2014 and circular dated 25 September
2014.

On 18 March 2014, the board of directors proposed
to implement the share consolidation and capital
reorganisation and were approved by the shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 23 April 2014. Immediately after the share
consolidation effected on 23 April 2014 (details refer to
note 34(a)), the board of directors proposed to implement
the capital reorganisation involving (i) a reduction in
the par value of each issued consolidated share from
HK$0.25 to HK$0.01; and (ii) a subdivision of each
authorised but unissued consolidated share into 25 new
shares of HK$0.01 each. The capital reorganisation was
completed on 20 August 2014.

Please refer to announcements of the Company dated
18 March 2014, 23 April 2014, 11 August 2014 and
20 August 2014 and circular dated 28 March 2014 for
details.

43. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the Board of Directors on 25 September 2014.
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42. RERRSER (&)

(a

(%)

AEARBERRBRNLEZHE &
SBANTBHA-ZE—NELAL
BR-ZE-NFLA=+—R2ZAMH
KSR -E—MFNAAZTHBZ
SBEK o

R_ZE—NE=ZA+N\B EEE#
EERHEHREAEHR TR _F
—EPA - +=B 8Tz AATK
REFRIAE FER R & - ZRERHD
AHR-ZE—NFNA=-+=H4EK
% (FIEF2HHE340)) EF SR
EEREARER  FROBESREET
B IRH 2 EEHBEE0. 25T E
B H0.0170 (>N ERIEZTEBRE
T2 A HRDIFME A5 SR EES
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The following is a summary of the published results and of the
assets and liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in

the note below:

RESULTS
Turnover

Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Loss before tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

Loss for the year/period from
continuing operations

(Loss)/profit from
discontinued operations

Loss for the year/period

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
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ES: |
EXB

FERRERL
ERIEERS

IR R
FriehiEe/ (BR)

REFELERLKZ
FE/HABE
KEERLEELEXEHL
(B#8) /@7

FE/HRER
THIA LS

RREHERA
FEER AR

o A B B R

BETIMEMESEEMGBRASEE TIBE
BUARBERAGBZHENT

Eighteen
months
Year ended ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2011 2010 2009
BE BE BE
8E HE —T——% —ZT-FTF _"TTHF
—E-QmF | ZE-=F =5 +=A +=—H
AAZTH | AE=1H =t+—H =—[E =E=E
EEE | E+NAER HEE HEE HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BEFT BT T B F T BEFT BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&&E5) (&&E5)

96,644 154,548 72,307 6,231 2,287
172,233 292,325 182,240 91,676 83,830
268,877 446,873 254,547 97,907 86,117
(90,169) (82,142) (296,673) (61,657) (7,959)

209 (1,580) (668) - =

(89,960) (83,722) (297,341) (61,657) (7,959)

(26,141) (10,500) (40,874) 4,387 4,073
(116,101) (94,222) (338,215) (57,270) (3,886)
(104,391) (84,992) (338,527) (55,196) (2,821)

(11,710) (9,230) 312 (2,074) (1,065)
(116,101) (94,222) (338,215) (57,270) (3,886)

AR () ARAR LR
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net assets

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

BEREE
FRBEE
mBEE
FRBAR
mEBRE

BEFE

THIALREM,:

AREEEBA
Sy S

At At At At At

30 June 30 June 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2011 2010 2009

i iy i

JiS R —E——F ZE-ZTF _—ZTAF

—E-mE | ZE—=F +=A +=A +=H
AAZ+H | SE=1H == =—E =1=E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BETT BETT FBETT BT T
391,902 462,194 498,073 114,292 197,467
155,914 177,957 217,979 148,302 117,290
(46,402) (44,554) (40,527) (6,869) (15,147)
(111,374) (90,116) (154,829) (57,392) (57,912)
390,040 505,481 520,696 198,333 241,698
405,494 509,225 514,655 203,628 245,565
(15,454) (3,744) 6,041 (5,295) (3,867)
390,040 505,481 520,696 198,333 241,698
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